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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Registered Office: Amsri Faust Complex, Door No 9-1-164 /A to 166, 5th Floor,

Sarojini Devi Road, Secunderabad- 500003, Telangana
Ph. No.011-26738406, Fax. No. 011-26182957 CIN:U45200TG2006PLC051378

NOTICE
Of the 16" Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 16 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of members
of Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited will be held on Thursday, 22nd
September, 2022 at 1500 hrs through Video Conferencing / Other Audio
Visual Means to transact the following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements & Board Report

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 together with the Report

of the Board of Directors, and the Auditors thereon.

2. Appointment of Director

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Dilip Kumar Gupta, (DIN No. 08203085),

who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Appointment of Director
To appoint a Director in place of Shri Sajal Mittra, (DIN No. 02625510), who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

4. Appointment of Director
To appoint a Director in place of Shri Vinay Kumar Prajapati, (DIN No.

09062988), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment.

5. Appointment & Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the
year 2022-23

As per the provisions of section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company is made by the Comptroller
& Auditor General of India (C&AG). Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013
provides that, the remuneration of the auditor of the Company shall be fixed
by the Company in General Meeting or in such manner as the Company may
determine in the General Meeting. Therefore the following resolution is

proposed before the General Meeting:

003



KRISHNAPATNAMRAILM COMPANYLIMITED

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the

following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company
appointed by the office of Comptroller & Auditor General of India for auditing |

of Accounts of the Company for financial year 2022-23.”

By Order of Board of Directors |

Eoy

Date: August 30,2022 Trilok Garg

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

Page 2
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KRISHNAPATNAMRAILIN COMPANYLIMITED
NOTES:

1. In view of the outbreak of COVID -19 pandemic, social distancing norms is being
followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April 2020, Circular
No0.17/2020 dated 13th April 2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May 2020,
Circular No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020 and General Circular No.
39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, General Circular No.02/2021 dated January
13, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated 14th December 2021 and General Circular No,
02/2022 dated 5th May 2022 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”)} permitted
the Companies to hold their Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through video
conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). In compliance with the
aforesaid MCA Circulars, applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
there under, the 16" AGM of the Company is being convened and conducted through VC. The
registered office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM. LINK FOR
ATTENDING THE AGM ON VC WILL BE SENT TO THE MEMBERS SEPARATELY IN EMAIL ON
THEIR REGISTERED EMAIL ADDRESS WITH THE COMPANY.

2. As per aforementioned MCA circulars, Company is allowed to send notice of the
Meeting and other correspondences related thereto, through electronic mode i.e.
emails. In compliance with the requirements of MCA Circulars above, an
electronic copy of the Notice of 16t Annual General Meeting of the Company
along with Annual Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022
consisting of financial statements, Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report and other
documents required to be attached therewith (Collectively referred to as Notice)
are being sent to members on their registered e- mail ids with the Company and
no physical copy of the Notice has been sent by the Company to any member.

3. If there is any change in the e-mail ID already registered with the Company,
members are requested to immediately notify such change to the Company by
sending a request on krcl.rail@gmail.com

4. Since the requirement of physical attendance of AGM by members has been
dispensed with by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, there is no requirement of
appointment of proxies by individual members. Accordingly, the facility of
appointment of proxy by members will not be available. However,
Institutional/Corporate members are required to send a certitfied copy of the
Board Resolution, pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Act 2013,
authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the AGM through VC.

5. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Sectivn 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Reglster of
Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be made available only in electronic
form for inspection during the Annual General Meeting through VC.

6. All other relevant documents referred to in the accompanying notice/explanatory
statement shall be made open for inspection by the members only in electronic
form at the AGM and on all working days, except Saturdays, from 11:00 a.m. to
01:00 p.m. up to the date of the Annual General Meeting subject to receipt of
request from member(s) to this effect on krcl.rail@gmail.com

7. The Notice for this Meeting along with requisite documents and the Annual
Report for the financial year ended 2021-22 is available on the Company’s

website hitp://krcl.org.in/

Page 3
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8.

10.

11.

KRISHNAPATNAMRAILM COMPANYLIMITED

Members are requested to contact the Authorized representative of the Company
on Mob: 9045890079, e-mail: krcl.rail@gmail.com during Monday to Friday
between 10:00 AM to 05:00 PM till the date of AGM for any assistance with using
the Video Conference facility for attending the AGM or reply to their queries/
redressal of complaints, if any.

During the 16t AGM (being called through VC), where a poll on any item is
required the members shall cast their vote(s) on the item(s) only by sending
emails through their registered email address with the Company. The said emails
shall only be sent to Company on its email: krcl.rail@gmail.com.

The facility of joining the meeting shall be open 15 minutes before the time
scheduled to start the meeting and shall be closed 15 minutes after such
scheduled time of the AGM.

As the 16" AGM is being held through VC, the route map is not annexed to this
Notice.

By Order of Board of Directors

oy

Date: August 30, 2022 Trilok Garg
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary

TO:

ii.

iii.

iv.

ALL THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY.
STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY.
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

ALL DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY.

Page 4
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BOARD’S REPORT

To
The Members,

KRISHN/\I'/\'I NAN R/\IIA\N/\\' (‘()\\ll’/\N\' [4IMI IREY)

The Board of Directors take pleasure in presenting the 16th Annual Report
on the working of your Company along with Audited Annual Accounts, for

the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022.

1. Financial Performance: Summary of Financial Results

In Rs. Lakhs

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue from Operations* 23,223.91 21,219.09
Other Income 577.70 594.33
Profit/Loss before Depreciation, Finance
Costs, Exceptional Items and Tax Expense 23,801.61 21,813.42
Less: Depreciation / Amortisation /
Impairment 9,483.91 9,570.65
Profit / Loss Before Finance Cost,
Exceptional items and Tax Expense 14,317.70 12,242.77
Less: Finance Cost 21,261.43 21,460.89
Profit / Loss Before Exceptional items and
Tax Expense (6,943.73) (9,218.12)
Less : Employees Benefit Expenses, O&M
Expenses and Other Expenses 3,731.08 7,189.94
Profit / Loss Before Tax Expense (10,674.81) (16,408.06)
Less: Tax Expense (Deferred) 906.95 (5,726.36)
Profit / Loss for the Year (1) (11581.76) (10,681.70)
Total Comprehensive Income (2) = =
Total (1+2) (11581.76) (10,681.70)
Balance of Profit /Loss for the earlier Years - -
Less : Transfer to Debenture Redemption
Reserve - =
Less : Transfer to Reserves - -
Less : Dividend paid on Equity Shares - -
Less : Dividend paid on Preference Shares - =
Less : Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Balance Carried Forward (PAT) (11581.76) (10,681.70)
Earnings Per Share (1.895) (1.71)
- Basic (1.85) (1.71)
- Diluted (1.85) (1.71)

*Figures of revenue and expenditures given above and recorded in Financial Statements
are based on assumptions taken while preparation of financial statements as per IND-AS.
Actual figures of revenue from operations and O&M expenses are given at para 2 below.
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2. Operations and Performance of the Company

During the FY 2021-22, 11.53 MT traffic was transported on KRCL line of
114 KM, whereas, during FY 2020-21, 8.81 MT traffic moved through the
line. There was an increase of about 31% in the movement of traffic volume
on the Line during the period under report, compared to FY 2020-21. This
happened primarily due to considerable surge in industrial production and
favourable economic environment post Covid -19.

During the year the Company earned Net operational earnings Rs. 206.51
Cr., (after defraying all O&M costs) in comparison to Rs.159.83 Cr. for FY
2020-21. During the year there was an increase in net operational earnings
of about 29%.

Fundamentally, the movement of Traffic on the Railway Line of the Company
depends on (i) volumes of (a) raw material consumption, (b) finished product
generated by the industries/plants being served through SPV line, (ii)
Import/Export policies of the Government and (iiij the performance of
Krishnapatnam Port. The overall performance of the Company also depends
on the nature of growth of the Industrial sector in the hinterland.

The traffic during FY 2022-23 is expected to grow by about 20-25 %, due to
likely increase in Imported Coal as well as increased Coastal Shipping of
coal traffic for powerhouses, steel plants, etc., and export of Clinker etc.

During year 2021-22 the country nearly recovered from the depressing
impact of Covid-19.

3. Operations & Maintenance of 114 KM Line between KAPT-OBVP

Operations on the complete Rail section between KAPT and OBVP of 114 KM
are carried out by Railways and the Company took over the P-Way, OHE, S
& T and TRD Maintenance of the 114 Km section between Obulavaripalle
(OBVP) and Krishnapatnam (KAPT).

The Company has awarded contracts for P-Way/Track including keyman,
S&T, OHE, Electrical General and PSI Maintenance of the complete line
section between Obulavaripalle and Krishnapatnam station of SPV, and has
appointed supervisory staff to ensure highest quality of maintenance work
being done on the line.

The Company executed a fresh O & M Agreement with S C Railway on
November 08, 2021 for the complete BG Electrified Railway Line.
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4. Reserves
Except unabsorbed loss for the year, the Company does not propose to carry

any amount to any reserve.

5. Share Capital and Debt Structure

During the year under review, there was no change in the Capital Structure
of the Company. Authorized share Capital of the Company is Rs. 650 Crore.
Issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital of the Company on 31st
March, 2022 is Rs. 625 Crore.

The Company has obtained a Term Loan of Rs. 1074.97 Crore (sanctioned
limit Rs. 1083 Crore) from schedule Banks/FI, prior to the commencement
of financial year 2019-20 to finance the construction of the project. The
Principal Term loan is payable in 52 quarterly instalments starting from
September, 2019. During the FY 2021-22 the Company has paid four
quarterly instalments aggregating Rs. 64.50 Cr. of the Term Loan and the
outstanding balance of the Term Loan as on 31st March, 2022 is Rs. 927.16
Crore.

6. Dividend
During the year the Company earned no profit after tax. Hence the Directors
do not recommend any dividend for the Financial Year ended on 31st March,

2022.

7. Changes in the nature of the Business
During the year under review, there were no changes in nature of business
of the Company.

8. Material changes and Commitments affecting the Financial Position

of the Company
There are no material changes and commitments, from the date of the
Balance Sheet till the date of this Report, affecting the financial position of

the Company.

9. Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic on Financial Position of the Company
The traffic during FY 2021-22 nearly attained the level of pre covid financial
year i.e. 2019-20 the same is expected to grow further in FY 2022-23 due to
recovery of the industries from impact of COVID 19 Pandemic. There was no
other impact of COVID 19 Pandemic on the Company during FY 2021-22.

10. Annual Return

The Annual Return, pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 11 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, is available on Company’s website i.e. http://krcl.org.in/
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11. Details of Board of Directors

11.1 Board’s composition, Category of Directors and their Meetings

The Board is collectively responsible for the sustainable success of the
Company under the leadership of Chairman. The Company’s Board has an
optimum combination of Executive as well as Non-Executive Nominee
Directors and reflects diversity in terms of disciplines, professions, social
groups, and gender and stakeholder interest.

The strength of the Board as on March 31, 2022 was Twelve (12) Directors.

They are as follows:

Sl. Name DIN Designation

No. Number

1 Ms. Jaya Varma Sinha (MoR) 09295401 Chairperson

2 Sh. K Siva Prasad 09124374 Managing

Director

3 Sh. D.K. Gupta (SDCL) 08203085 Nominee Director

4 Sh. Vinay Kumar Prajapati (SDCL) 09062988 Nominee Director

S Sh. Avinash Chand Rai (AKPL) 08406981 Nominee Director

6 Sh. Sajal Mittra (AKPL) 02625510 Nominee Director

7 Mrs. Shilpi Agarwal (RVNL) 08004390 Nominee Director

8 Sh. Somnath Nandi (NMDC) 08859169 Nominee Director

9 Sh. M. P. Singh (RVNL) 08165734 Nominee Director

10 [ Sh. B. K. Reddy (RVNL) 07823758 Nominee director

11 | Sh. Muralidharan Krishnamoorthy | 07181603 Nominee Director
(GOAP)

12 | Sh. Munna Kumar (RVNL) 09394779 Nominee Director

The notice of Board and Committee Meetings is given well in advance to all
the Directors and Committee Members. The Agenda is normally circulated a
week prior to the date of the Meeting. The Agenda for the Board and
Committee Meetings include detailed notes on the items to be discussed at
the Meeting to enable the Directors and Members to take an informed
decision. During the year, in terms of various circulars issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs because of COVID 19, all the Meetings were held through
audio - video means only.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Board of Directors met

Four (4) times on 227 June, 2021, 26t August, 2021, 14th December, 2021
and 08th March, 2022.
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11.2 Details of attendance of each Director in the Board meetings held
during the period April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022:

Sl. | Name of the Director Designation Meetings Meetings
No Held during | Attended
the tenure
1 Ms. Jaya Varma Sinha | Chairperson 2 2
2 Sh. K Siva Prasad Managing Director | 4 4
3 Mr. D.K. Gupta Nominee Director |4 3
4 Mr. M. P. Singh Nominee Director | 4 4
5 Mrs. Shilpi Agarwal Nominee Director |4 4
6 Mr. B. K. Reddy Nominee Director |4 3
7 Mr. Somnath Nandi Nominee director |2 0
8 Mr. Muralidharan | Nominee Director | 3 1
Krishnamoorthy
9 Mr. Sajal Mittra Nominee Director |4 3
10 [ Mr. Avinash Chand Rai | Nominee Director |2 I
11 | Mr. Munna Kumar Nominee Director |2 1
12 | Mr. V K Prajapati Nominee Director |4 2

*Cessation/ Appointment/Re-appointment of Directors during April 01,
2021 to March 31, 2022. Details are given under section 11.3 below.

11.3 Changes in the Board during the period April 01, 2021 to March
31, 2022

During the year under review, following changes took place in the
composition of the Board of Directors of the Company:
S. | Name of the | Designation | Appointment Resignation/

No Director | Re-appointment and Change
_ _ | — | in Designation of Director
1. Sh. K Siva Prasad Managing | Appointment on April 19,
Director | 2021
2.  Sh. N P  Nominee | Cessation on June 22, 2021
Ramakrishna Reddy | Director
3. | Sh. K. Muralidharan | Nominee | Appointment on June 22,
Director 12021
5
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4. Dr. D V | Nominee* Cessation on September 01,
Subrahmanyam Director 2021*
5. | Sh. Sushant Kumar Nominee Cessation on September 21,
Mishra Director 2021
6. Ms. Jaya Varma Nominee ' Appointment on September
Sinha Director 21,2021
7. | Sh. Munna Kumar Nominee ' Appointment on November 15,
Director | 2021
8. | Sh. Alok Kumar Nominee ' Cessation on November 23,
Mehta Director 2021
9. | Sh. Somnath Nandi ' Nominee 'Appointment on November 23,
Director | 2021
10. Sh. Gudena Nominee Cessation on November 23,
Jagannadha Rao Director 12021
11. Sh. Avinash Chand | Nominee | Appointment on November 23,
Rai Director | 2021

*Cessation due to resignation by the Director.

11.4 Details of Committee Meetings

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the
Company and have been constituted to deal with specific areas / activities
as mandated by applicable regulations and need a closer review. The Board
Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out
clearly defined roles which are performed by Members of the Board, as a
part of good governance practice. The Board is informed about the summary
of the discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The Minutes of Meetings
of all the Committees are placed before the Board for review. The Board
Committees can request special invitees to join the Meeting, as appropriate.

The Board has established the following statutory Committees:

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: In accordance with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee comprises Shri M. P. Singh, Shri B. K. Reddy and
Shri V. K. Prajapati as its Members. The power, role and terms of reference
of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee covers the areas as
contemplated under Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companics Act,
2013, based on other terms as defined by the Board of Directors.

The Minutes of each Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meeting are
placed at the subsequent Meeting of the Committee and the Board. During
the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee of the Company met once on 08th March, 2022.
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12. Details of Appointment and cessation of Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP)

During the year under review following changes took place in the personnel
appointed/designated as KMP as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013:

1. Sh. K Siva Prasad, IRTS (Retd.) joined as Managing Director of the
Company w.e.f. April 19, 2021.

2. Sh. T Muni Prasad was appointed as Chief Financial Officer/KRCL
w.e.f. August 26, 2021.

Details of KMPs as on March 31, 2022:
1. Shri K Siva Prasad, IRTS (Retd.), Managing Director
2. Shri T Muni Prasad, Chief Financial Officer
3. Shri Trilok Garg, Company Secretary

13. Particulars of Employees and related Disclosures

In terms of the provisions of section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5(2) and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014. During the year under Report, no
employee of the Company was drawing remuneration in excess of
Rs. 6,00,000/- per month.

14. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

During the year under review, the Company has not advanced any loans/
given guarantees/made investments under section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

15. Particulars or Contracts with Related Party Transactions

No Related Party Transactions was entered into by the Company during the
year as per the provisions of section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under
Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not
applicable.

16. Internal Financial Control
The Company has in place adequate internal control system which is

commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations. The
Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and eftectiveness of the
internal control systems and no reportable material weakness in the design
or operation were observed.

17. Statutory Auditors Report
M/s Arun K Agarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants were appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for FY 2021-22 by the office of the

7
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CAG. The report of Statutory Auditors of the Company is received and
circulated to the shareholders along with notice of Annual General Meeting.

18. Secretarial Audit Report

The Company appointed Mr. Anil Anand (Company Secretary in Practice), as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for FY 2021-22 pursuant to provisions of
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Report of Secretarial Auditor for the Financial Year 2021-22 was
received and is annexed to this report as Annexure-I.

19. Explanations or comments by the Board on qualifications,
reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer in the Auditor’s Report and
Secretarial Auditor’s report

Explanations or replies of the Board on qualifications/reservations/adverse
remarks, disclaimers in the Audit Report issued by the Statutory Auditor of
the Company is enclosed as Annexure-II, to Directors report.

20. Risk Management Policy

The Company got a mandate to execute the Obulavaripalle- Krishnapatnam
New BG Rail Line project on built, own, operate and transfer basis for a
period of 30 years or on attainment of NPV payback at a discount rate of
14% (whichever is earlier), under a concession agreement signed by the
Company with Ministry of Railways on 23rd November, 2007. Thus the rights
of the Company to earn revenue from operations of the project are protected
by the concession agreement.

The volume and size of Company's earnings and profit largely depends on
the volume of traffic movement on the line, which is dependent on several
factors beyond the control of the Company i.e. economic conditions, import /
export policy of the Government, currency fluctuations, level of demand and
supply of various components of traffic moved on the line, etc. To combat
the risks of uncertainty in earnings of the Company the Company is moving
forward in the direction of capacity augmentation of the line, building strong
relationship with the stakeholders and customers, providing hassle free
services, reduction of O&M cost, etc.

The risk associated with the project assets of the Company of the
operational line are protected by obtaining the comprehensive insurance
policies for the assets.

The management is of the view that a business of this size and nature must
be reviewed constantly to identify the risk factors and proper measures
should be adopted in time for risk mitigation, risk handling.
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The Board keeps a close watch on the happenings in and outside the
Company that can have any major impact on the Company, its earnings and
its existence. Based on the above factors, the Board is of the opinion that, at
present various risks associated with the Company and its business are low
to moderate level.

21. Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is committed to conduct its business in a socially responsible,
ethical and environmental friendly manner and to continuously work
towards improving quality of life of the communities. The Company has
constituted a CSR Committee, which is responsible for fulfilling the CSR
Objectives of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

The Company has in place CSR Policy which lays down the philosophy and
approach towards CSR commitment and the same is placed on the website
of the Company i.e. http://krcl.org.in/. There was no change in the CSR policy of
the Company during the period under report.

A Report on Corporate Social Responsibility activities as required under the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended
by The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment
Rules, 2021 effective from 220d January, 2021 is appended as Annexure III
to this Report.

22. Compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Board has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI and that
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

23. Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is about maximizing all stakeholders’ value legally,
ethically and sustainably. At KRCL the goal is to ensure fairness to all
stakeholders so as to enhance and retain their trust. The Company will
continue to uphold the true spirit of Corporate Governance and implement
the best governance practices. It lays emphasis on transparency,
accountability, ethical practiccs and profcssional managcment in its
activities.

24. Subsidiary Companies, Joint Venture or Associate Companies
During the year under review, there were no companies which has become/
ceased to become a Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures/ Associate Companies of
KRCL.
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25. Deposits

During the year under review the Company has neither accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 of Companies Act,
2013, nor has it contravened the compliance requirements of Chapter V of
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules.

26. Orders Passed by Regulator or Courts or Tribunals
There is no order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and Company’s operations.

27. Directors Responsibility

Your directors would like to inform that the Audited accounts containing the
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 are in full
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and they
believe that the financial statements reflect fairly the form and substance of
transactions carried out during the year. The financial statements, audited
by the statutory auditors M/s Arun K Agarwal & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, reasonably present the Company’s financial condition and
results of operations, particularly considering the unique nature of
operations of the company.

In pursuance of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors
hereby confirm that:

(@) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

(e) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern
basis; and

(e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

10
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28. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings & Outgo:

a) The particulars required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the rule 8(3)(A) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 regarding Energy Conservation do not apply.

b) The Company uses relevant technologies in carrying out its office
activities and maintenance of Rail line in compliance with all applicable
Guidelines issued by MoR.

c) During the year under review, your Company’s foreign exchange
earnings and outgo were NIL.

29. Disclosure as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance policy towards sexual harassment at the
workplace and strives for prevention, prohibition of sexual harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules
there under. During the Financial Year 2021-22 the Company had no
women employee and has not received any complaint related to sexual
harassment.

30. Maintenance of Cost Records As Specified by the Central
Government under Sub-Section (1) Of Section 148 of The Companies
Act, 2013

Maintenance of Cost Records under Section 148(1) of The Companies Act,
2013 is not applicable to the Company.

31. Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors during the reporting period
under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

32. Statement on Declaration Given By Independent Directors
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Declaration Given by Independent Directors under Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company as the Company

does not have any Independent Director during the reporting period.
11
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33. Company’s Policy On Directors’ Appointment And Remuneration
Including Criteria For Determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes,
Independence Of A Director And Other Matters Provided Under Sub-
Section (3) Of Section 178 the Companies Act, 2013.

Except One post of Whole Time Managing Director, all the Directors in the
BoD of the Company are representative Directors (part time non-executive)
nominated by its Shareholders under provisions of Shareholders and Share
Subscription Agreement. The Nominee Directors do not draw any
remuneration from KRCL.

For appointment of Managing Director all terms & conditions i.e. mandatory
education qualifications, relevant experience, positive attributes,
remuneration etc., are approved by the Board of Directors directly/on the
recommendations of the MD Selection Committee, as per requirements of
the Company.

34. Filing of Statutory E-forms With Ministry of Corporate Affairs

During Period under review Company has filed all Statutory E-forms with
Registrar of Companies (Ministry of Corporate Affairs)

35. Details of application made or any proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year
along with their status as at the end of the financial year

No Application is made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
(81 of 2016) during the year and no such proceeding pending at the end of
the financial year.

36. Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the
time of one time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan
from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons
thereof.

No such difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one
time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or
Financial Institutions was there during period under review

37. Appreciation and Acknowledgement

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the continued
assistance, valuable guidance and support rendered by the Ministry of
Railways (MoR), South Central Railway, Lender Banks, Auditors and
shareholders of the Company. The Directors look forward to your continued
support in future.

12



KR!SHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LlMlTED

Your Directors also wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to the
commitment, involvement and dedication shown by Company’s Human
capital in steady growth of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: New Delhi K Siva Prasad Shilpi Agarwal
Date: June 28, 2022 Managing Director Director
(DIN: 09124374) (DIN: 08004390)
13

019



Aﬂnex ure -1

I R

{Company Secretary in Practice)

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315TMARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Niembers,

KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Amsri Faust Complex),

Door No D-9-1-164/A to 1686,

5th Floor, Sarojini Devi Road

Secunderabad

Telangana-500003.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Krishnapatnam Railway company
Limited (CIN: U45200TG2006PLC051378) (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provides us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31t March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Company for the financial year ended on 318 March, 2022 according to the

provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made there
under: - Not Applicable

(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under: -
Not Applicable

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment: - Not Applicable

= = e o
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59/2, Second Floor, Kalkaji, New Delhi-110 019,
Email: csanilanand96@gmail.com Phone: +91 9873925927
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act’): -

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; - Not Applicable _ _
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations 1992; - Not Applicable _
¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations 2009; - Not Applicable

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999; - Not Applicable

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; - Not Applicable

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client; - Not Applicable

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Enquiry Shares)
Regulations, 2009; - Not Applicable and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998; - Not Applicable

(vi) We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i)  Secretarial Standard issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with... Stock
Exchange(s): - Not Applicable,;

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
rules, regulations and guidelines mentioned above

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Directors as
per Companies Act, 2013. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the

Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance to the Directors for holding the
Board Meetings during the year, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of
the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

021



We further report that
i.  there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size

and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,

rules, regulations and guidelines, and
ii.  during the Audit period, there are no such specific events/actions having a major bearing
on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,

guidelines, standards taken place.

The Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A’ and
forms an integral part of this report.

CS Anil Anand oy, <o
ACS:10328, CP No: 11295
UDIN: A010328D000526910

Date: 28-June-2022
Place: New Delhi
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To,

ANNEXURE-A

The Members,

KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Amsri Faust Complex),

Door No D-9-1-164/A to 166,

5th Floor, Sarojini Devi Road

Secunderabad

Telangana-500003.

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

4
[

&)

CS Anil Anan
ACS:10328, C

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records

based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has

cc?nducted the affairs of the Company.

L |

\I’, -
CPNo. 11295
New De'h

I6: 11295

UDIN: A010328D000526910

Date: 28-June-2022
Place: New Delhi
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Anvexore - 11

KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Regd. office: Amsri Faust Complex, Door Nc_> 9-1-164/A-166, 5" Floor, Sarojini Devi Road,
Secunderabad- 500003, Telangana, CIN NO. U45200TG2006PLC051378

Sl
No.

Auditor’s Comments for Financial Year 2021-22

Management Reply

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

Monthly revenue bills/apportionment sheet of
revenue are received from South Central Railway
(“SCR™). All these invoices are marked as
"Provisional" and the outcome of provisional
invoices are not known till the date of audit report.
The monthly revenue statements are not checked
and certified by the concerned from the company.
Thus, the final accounts are drawn on the strength
of provisional unverified revenue. Further, as
stated in Note 19(i)(d), all supporting evidences
related to revenue booking are being controlled
and managed by the SCR. As intimated to us, the
same are not available with the company, hence,
there is no basis to verify the same.

Further, as referred by the management of the
company vide Note 19(i) (c), the revenue is
provisional and subject to pending decision of
Arbitration w.r.t. revenue on account of terminal
cost from SCR for past periods of operation from
beginning also. Thus, operating revenue could not
be verified and financial impact, if any, cannot be
ascertained till finality of the same.

It is the practice of Railway Administration to
furnish such statements, viz., Revenue or
O&M or any other amount paid to be marked
as ‘Provisional’.

KRCL do not have any control over the
practices followed by Railway Administration
(SCR).

Revenue Statements are always checked by
KRCL officers at Secunderabad. Copies of all
revenue statements certified by CFO/KRCL
and Expert (O&C)/KRCL have been
furnished to Audit team. A few examples of
daily loading details as well as Monthly
loading provided by SCR were shown to the
Audit team and matched, which were found
correct,

Note 19 (i) (¢) is a disclosure of facts. The
matter is under arbitration and subjudice.

2 Despite of contractual obligation in terms of the | In terms of Construction Agreement with Rail
Construction Agreement with Rail Vikas Nigam | Vikas Nigam Limited, Departmental Charges
Limited (“RVNL"), the Company is neither | are payable to RVNL on the basis of final
paying nor providing towards departmental | cost of work. Since RVNL has not raised any
charges @ 5% without obtaining any waiver or | invoice/claim in this regard, therefore this
concession in the agreed terms of agreement. The | amount has been treated as “Contingent
Company has estimated liability of T 11411.82 Liability” in the Books of Accounts.
lacs being 5% of total project cost which been
considered as contingent liability (Refer Note-39¢) | The Company has represented to RVNL for
in the financial statements. In view of no waiving off the Departmental Charges.
accounting treatment of said departmental | Hence, it would be logical to retain the
charges, Other Intangible Assets and Other | amount of Departmental  Charges in
Financial Liabilities are understated to that extent. | Contingent Liability.

Further, had it been capitalized, the corresponding
impact on Loss of the respective year due to
amortisation cost of intangible assets, not
considered.
3 The Company is neither paying nor providing | SCR is performing operations on KRCL

SIVA PRASAD g3ty saneaty
KASTURI Date: 2022.07.00

21:57:00 40530
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Corporate office: Room No. 272, 1* Floor, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi-110066
Ph. No. 011-26738404, Fax. No. 011-26182957
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Goods and Service Tax (“GST”) on Operation &
Maintenance Cost (“O&M”) under reverse charge
mechanism on bills raised by SCR on the rationale
that there is no service involved in these
transactions (Refer Note 43). The current year’s
impact of GST @ 18% of O&M Charges comes to
T 39840 lacs (excluding interest, if any).
However, in view of uncertain amount of total

R;\il_way line which is a sovereign function of
Indian Railways and SCR is charging cost of
operations from KRCL in monthly O&M
bills.

Maintenance of the Railway line is being
done by the Company itself through
contractors and the Company is paying GST

GST, impact since inception cannot be | on bills of maintenance contractors.
determined.
Hence, the amount of O&M Cost charged by
SCR from KRCL is allocation of cost of
operations between SCR and KRCL. As such
there is no service provided by SCR to
KRCL. Due to operations, whatever revenue
is generated, GST is paid to Government by
SCR.
Since there is no service involved, therefore
no GST is payable on O&M bills of SCR.
=8
Digitally signed by
PRASAD e ——Fr
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Sl. | Auditor’s Comments for Financial Year 2020-21 Management Reply
No.
Emphasis of Matters

1 [ Note 4.5 to the accompanying financial statements, | At present RVNL is claiming D&G Charges
according to which, D&G charges being capitalised | in accordance with provisions of Construction
and amortised is subject to change based on | Agreement.
outcome of actual final completion cost. On Completion of work, final accrual of

D&G Charge will be calculated and actual
impact will be taken in Financial Statements.

2 | Note 4.7 to the accompanying financial statements | Statement of fact, hence, no comment
in relation to incremental project cost, ongoing | required.
expenditure bills after commencement of operations
and consequent impact on capitalization of

| Intangible Assets. - _

3 |Note no 19 (i) (b) &(c) to the accompanying | Statement of fact, hence, no comment
financial statements which describes impact of | required.
anticipated earnings on account of (a) length of
about 14.45 KM section from Krishnapatnam
Railway Station and (b) similar payment of
terminal costs for past periods also. These issues
are now pending under Arbitration and the revenue
reported is subject to the outcome of Arbitration.

4 [Note 21 (i) to the accompanying financial | It is the practice of Railway Administration to
statements, which describes regarding recognition | furnish such statements, viz., Revenue or
of O&M Expenses on the basis of provisional bills | O&M or any other amount paid to be marked
intimated by SCR. as ‘Provisional’.

KRCL do not have any control over the
practices followed by Railway
Administration,

5 | Note 34 to the accompanying financial statements | Statement of fact, hence, no comment
which describes about pending review of capital | required.

|| commitment for project related assets.

6 | Note 43 to the accompanying financial statements, | Revenue is collected by Indian Railway (IR).
which describes non-charging of GST on its | IR is paying the necessary GST to the
revenue on the rationale that it is not supply but | Government of India. Hence, further GST is
merely apportionment of earnings. not required to be paid by KRCL.
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No.

Auditor’s Comments for Financial Year 2020-21

Management Reply

Interna!l Financial Cont_rol

All supporting evidences related to revenue
booking and O&M charges are being controlled &
managed by SCR only. Working Sheets and
collateral records neither supplied by the SCR nor
maintained by the company. As a result, there is no
basis to verify the same.

Every month reconciliation is being carried
out with the Traffic Revenue Officer of SCR.
RR wise reconciliation is done every month
by KRCL Officers in order to arrive at correct
revenue apportionment for the company.
Also, systematic records are maintained.
Revenue Statements and O&M Bills are
always checked by KRCL officers at
Secunderabad. Copies of all revenue
statements and O&M Bills certified by
CFO/KRCL and Expert (O&C)/KRCL have
been fumnished to Audit team. A few
examples of daily loading details as well as
Monthly loading provided by SCR were
shown to the Auditors and matched, which
were found correct.

As informed to us, there is no methodology on the
part of management to ensure the up to date
accounting of expenditure on construction projects,
including bills which are already incurred but not
billed to the company and also which are awaited
dispatch by the contractors for the construction.

RVNL submits monthly/bimonthly bills of
the contractors for ongoing construction of

the project. Since, RVNL is an EPC
Contractor, KRCL does not have any
indication on the forthcoming/future

construction bills.

igltally signe: “5 e ;
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Annual Report on CSR Activities

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]”

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy:

Your Company has a robust Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy framed in line with
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and adopts various programmes which give the
Company an opportunity to demonstrate its social responsibility and good corporate
citizenship. All efforts are being taken to add value in fulfilling CSR objectives through effective
implementation of projects for sustainable developments.

The Company is actively working towards providing Educational support 8 Skill Development
etc. The scope of this policy extends to activities as stated under Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013, as may be amended from time to time.

2, Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. | Name of Director Designation/Nature of | Number of | Number of

No. Directorship CSR meetings | meetings of CSR
held during | Committee
the year attended during

the year

1. | Sh. M. P. Singh (Non Executive Director) 1 (One) 1

2. | Sh. B.K. Reddy {Non Executive Director) 1

3. | Sh. V. K. Prajapati (Non Executive Director) 1

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR

projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

Website : http://krcl.org.in/csr/

4. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Palicy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable-Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set off for the financial year, if any.

Sl. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount required to
No. from preceding financial be set-off for the
years (in Rs.) financial year, if
any (in Rs.)
1. 2021-22 Nil Nil

6. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135 (5): Rs. 4783.26 Lakh (Loss)
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7s (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): -Rs. 95.67
Lakh (Loss)

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: - Nil

{c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year :-NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) :- NIL

8. (a) Details of CSR spent or Unspent for the financial year.
Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount
Spent for Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund
the Unspent CSR Account as per | specified under Schedule VII as per
Financial Sec 135(6) second proviso to section 135(5)
Year (in Rs.)
Amount Date of | Name of | Amount Date of
Transfer fund Transfer
NA NA NA NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not

Applicable
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7 (8) (9 (10) (11)
SI. | Name item from Local | Location of the Project Amount Amount | Amount Mode of Mode of
No. | ofthe the list of area project Duration | allocated spent In transferred to Implemen | Implementation -
Project activities (Yes/ for the the Unspent CSR tation - Through
in Schedule No) project current Account forthe | Direct Implementing
Vil (inRs.) financial | project as per (Yes/No) Agency
to the Act State | District ¥ean SSCHONMSES)
(InRs.) (in Rse.) Nama T CSR
Registrati
on
number
(C) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial
year: NIL
(1) (2) (3) 4 (5} (6) (7) (8)
Sl. | Name Item from Local | Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of
No. | of the the list of area | project Spent for Implemen | Implementation -
Project | activities (Yes/ the project | tation - Through Implementing
in Schedule No) Direct Agency
St D In Rs,
VI ate | District | ( ) (Yes, No)
to the Act Name CSR
Registration
Number

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads- Nil
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(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable- Not Applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year- NIL
(8b+8c+8d+8e)

{(g) Excess amount for Set off, if any

SI. No Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section -95.67
135(5) Lakh(Loss)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year NIL
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NiIL
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or NIL
activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iti)- NIL
(iv)]
9 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
SI. | Preceding | Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund Amount
No | Financial | transferred to | spent specified remaining
Year Unspent CSR | in the under Schedule VII as per section | to
Account reporting 135 (6), be spent in
under Financial if any. succeeding
section 135 Year financial
(6) (in Rs.) Name Amount Date of years. (in
(in Rs.) of the (in Rs.) transfer Rs.)
Fund
1. | 2020-21 Nil Nil NA NA NA NIL
2. |1 2019-20 Nil Nil NA NA NA NIL
3. | 2018-19 Nil Nil NA NA NA NIL
TOTAL
(b)Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s): Not Applicable
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 9)
SI. | Project | Name Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of
No | 1D of Year in duration | amount spent on | amount spent the
the which the allocated | the at the end of project -
Project | Project was for the project in reporting Completed
commenced project the Financial /Ongoing
reporting Year
Financial (in Rs.)
Year (in Rs.)
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10.

11.

Date:

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so created acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details). -
Not Applicable

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). - NA

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital Asset — NA

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such
capital asset is registered, their address etc. - NA

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete

address and location of the capital asset).- NA

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5). -Not Applicable

\/ oy \\J\J':

(K. Siva Prasad) M. P. Singh)
Managing Director MemMber CSR Committee
28.06.2022

Place: New Delhi
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

e (Tin Lakhs)
Particulars ':f;e As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
. |ASSETS
1 |Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 229.31 253.57
(b) Other Intangible Assets 4 2,53,618.53 2,63,856.89
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Others 5.1 1,903.47 2,070.70
(d) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 15 7,132.12 8,039.07
(e) Other Non-Current Assets 6 - 2,62,883.43 50.00 2,74,270.23
2 |Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 7.1 4,901.97 5,210.65
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7.2 2,800.93 4,404,28
(iiiy Bank Balances other than (ii) above 7.3 6,272.79 5,600.68
(iv) Others 7.4 2,267.61 55.33
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 529.22 493.59
(c) Other Current Assets 9 189.56 16,962.08 7.23 15,771.76
Total Assets 2,79,845.51 2,90,041.99
Il. |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 10 62,500,00 62,500.00
(b) Other Equity 1 (19,391.58) 43,108.42 (7,809.82) 54,690.18
2 |Liabilities
(i) |Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowing 121 85,191.28 92,716.06
(i} Trade Payables
a) Total Qutstanding Due to Micro
enterprises and small enterprises
. 12.2
b) Total Outstanding Due to
czeditors other thangMicro B0 129.12
enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 13 6.50 -
(b) Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 15 - -
(c) Other Non-Current Liability 16 42.74 85,315.61 69.72 92,914.90
(i) |Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowing 17.1 7,360.40 6,449.81
(i) Trade Payables
a) Total Outstanding Due to Micro
enterprises and small enterprises 17.2
b) Total Outstanding Due to creditors
other than Micro enterprises and 476.84 1,859.56
small enterprises
(iii} Other financial liabilities 17.3 1,38,338.71 1,28,927.51
(b) Provisions 14 5,000.00 5,000.00
(c) Other Current liability 18 245,53 200.02
(d) Current Tax Liability (Net) 9 - 1,51,421.48 - 1,42,436.90
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,79,846.51 | ~2,90,041.99 |

Il

See accompanying notes to the financial statements (Note 1-47)

As per our Report of evan date attached
For Arun K. Agarwal & As

Chartered Accountan

FRN: 003917N

Place : New Delhi

Date:28.°6 '-zﬁ-ll

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

SIVA PRASAD mcaneram ™"
KASTUR' Dale 20720628

164716 10530
K. Siva Prasad

Managing Director
DIN :09124374

Trilok Garg
Company Secretary
M No. 30019
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

¥ in Lakhs except EPS)
For the year ended 31st| For the year ended

e Note No. March 2022 31st March 2021
Revenue :
I. |Revenue from Operations 19 23,223.91 21,219.09
Il. |Other Income 20 577.70 594.33
n. Total Income (I + 1) 23,801.61 21,813.42
IV. |Expenses:
Operation & Maintenance Expense 21 3,302.79 6,201.04
Employee Benefits Expenses 22 160.60 96.39
Finance Costs 23 21,261.43 21,460.89
Depreciation and Amortization 24 9,483.91 9,570.65
Other Expenses 25 267.69 892.51
Total Expenses (IV) 34,476.42 38,221.48
V. E’Ir\t;)fitl(Loss) Before exceptional items and Tax (Ill (10,674.81) (16.408.06)
VI. |Exceptional ltems - -
VII. [Profit/(Loss) before tax (V - VI) (10,674.81) (16,408.06)

Vill. | Tax Expense:

(1) Current Tax
- For the year -

(2) Deferred Tax (Net) 26 906.95 (5.726.36)

Tatal Tax Expense (VIN) 906.95 (5,726.36)
X Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing (11,581.76) (10,681.70)

operation (VII - Vill)

X |Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations -

Xl |Tax Expense of discontinued operations o -
Profit/{loss) from discontinued operations (after tax)

X oxexiy : -

Xl [Profiti{loss) for the period (IX+XII) (11,581.76) (10,681.70)

XIV |Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and R R
loss

(ii) Income Tax relating to Items that will not be
reclassified to profit and loss

B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss - -

(ii) Income Tax relating to ltems that will be - -
reclassified to profit and loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIIl
XV [+XIV) (Comprising profit/(Loss) and Other {11,581.76) (10,681.70)
Comprehensive income for the period)
Earnings Per Equity Share:

(For Continuing Operation)

(1) Basic (Face Value of Share ¥ 10/-) (In %) 27 (1.85) (1.71)
(2) Diluted (Face Value of Share T 10/-) (In %) 27 (1.85) (1.71)
XVII [Earnings Per Equity Share:
(For Discontinuing Operation)
(1) Basic {(Face Value of Share ¥ 10/-) {(In %) 27 - -
(2) Diluted (Face Value of Share ¥ 10/-) (In ) 27 - -
XVIll | Earnings Per Equity Share:

(For Continuing and Discontinuing Operation)
(1) Basic (Face Value of Share ¥ 10/-) (In%) 27 (1.85) (1.71)
(2) Diluted (Face Value of Share % 10/-) (In %) 27 (1.85) (1.71)

XV

See accompanying notes to the financial statements (Note-1-47)

As per our Report of even dale allached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Arun K. Agarwal & Associates
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PRASAD  xastumi

Date: 2022.06.28

KASTURI 64825 +0530°
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KRISHNAPTNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Statemani of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March 2022

= i |.akhs)
Particul For the year ended 31st March | Forthe year ended 31st March
artlculare 2022 2021
CASH FLOW FROM CPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before taxatlon (10,674 81) {16 408.06)
Ad]ustment for :
Deprecialion, ization and impai 9,483.91 9,57065
Interest Incom (320.64) (354,52)
Interest Expenses on Term Loan 8,570.16 9,403 69
| Inleres| Expenses on RVNL Bills 12,67533 11,623,655
Unwinding of discounl-receivable from SCR (222 08) (212,83}
| Unwinding of discounl-overhead cost payable 1587 2213
Income from reversal of deferred Overhead costs payable (26.98) {26.98)
Imarest on Provision for resurfacing 411561
Operating Profit before operating capital changas {1) 19,492.76 14,029,14
Ad)ustment for :-
Decreass / {Increase} in Trade Receivables 208,68 (693.52)
/Loans & Advances
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Financial curreri Assets (2,155.58) {2261)
Dacrease / (Increase) in Other current Assets {182.33) 83.35
| Decrease / {Increase) in Olher Non Current Assels 50.00 200
Dacreasa / (Increase} in Other Non Current Financial Assels 389,31 .
(Decrease) / Increase in Non Current Trade Payables (69.90} (142 40)
{Dacrease) / Increase in Current Trade Payables (1,382.72) 1,314.02
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Financial Liabilty (3.257 63) 1.755.30
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Current Liability 4551 333
(Decreass) / Increase in Other Non Current Liabilty - -
{Daecrease) / Increase in non-current Provision - 841.12
2 | (e.254.60) 2,940.50
Cash generated from oparatlon {1+2) 13,238.10 16,968.73
| Income Tax Paid {Net of Refund) 3563) (27 55)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {A) 13,202.47 16,942.18
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTNITIES
Capital Expenditure on Property Plant Equipment and Intangible
Assets, Including Capital Advances 77811 (2:867.16)
Increase in deposits having original maturity of more than lhree
siaifiths and athar hank batances ®72:11) sagrt
Interest Income - 271,93 396.16
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {B) 370.83 12,148.23)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Loan (6.614.19) {5.106.10)
Interest Expenses on Term Loan {8,570 18) (9,403 69)
MET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTRATIES (c) {15,184.35) {14,509.79)
NET INCREASE {Decrease) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT {A+B+C}) {1,603,35} 286.16
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT {OPENING) ) 4,404,298 4,118,112
Balances with Banks-Current Account 428 1812
Deposits with Bank with less than 3 monlhs malurity 4,400 .00 4,100,00
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT {CLOSING) {E} 2,800.93 4,404.28
Balances with Banks-Current Accaount 0,93 428
Daeposits with Bank wilh less than 3 months malurity 2,800,00 4,400,00
.
NET INCREASE/DECREASE} IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT {E-D) (1,603.35} 286.18
of Liabilities arising fram Ninanoing i as on 31al March 2022 are as follows
Particulars Barrowings
Balance al 18t Aprll, 2021 98.165.07
Canh Flows:-
-Repayment 861419
-Proceeds -
Mon-Goshi-
- Accrued during the year
- Fair Value .
Balance at 31 n_\g;_w._;_r_r_.ﬂzz_ 92,551.68
Reconclllation of Llabllitles arising from financing activitles as on 31st March 2021 are as follows
|Particulars ) ] " [Borrowings
Balance 01 1t April, 2020 1,04,271.97
Cash Aows:-
-Repayment 5,106 10
-Proceeds -
MNep-Canti-
- Accrued during the year
- Fair Value -
|£Ii|nl|c'al31l( Maroh, 2021 UG 105.87
As per our Report of even date atfasie For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Arun K. Agarwal & Assaciate SIVA Dyteyigmd -
o sva a0
Chartered Accountants PRASAD  wsius
FRN : 003917N ety
K. Slva Prasad Shilpi Ag Lliw
Managing Direclor Direclor
DIN :09124374 DIN :08004390
il
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A. Equity Share Capital

As at 31st March 2022

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2022

{T In Lakhs)

Balance at the Changes in Restated balance |Changes in equity |Balance at the

beginning of the Equity Share at the beginning of |share capital end of the current
Particulars current reporting Capital due to  |the current durlng the current |reporting period

period prlor period reporting period period

errors

Number of Shares (in Lakhs) 625000 | - = - 6.250.00
Amount 62.500.00 - - 62.500.00 |
As at 31st March 2021 o (T In Lakhs)

Balance at the Changes in Restated balance |Changes in equity |Balance at the

beginning of the Equity Share at the beginning of |share capital end of the current
Particulars current reporting Capital due to  |the current during the current |reporting period

perlod prior period reporting period period

errors
Number of Shares (in Lakhs) 6.250.00 - 6.250.00
Amount 62,500.00 - - 62,500.00
B. Other Equity (T in Lakhs)
Particulars Reserve & Surplus Total
Retained Earnings
Balance at April 1, 2020 2,871.88 2,871.88
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Restated Balance as at April 1, 2020 2,871.88 2,871.88
Profit for the year (10,681.70) (10,681.70)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of income tax) - -
Tatal Comprehensive Income for the year (10,681.70) (10,681.70)
Dividends paid = -
Balance at March 31, 2021 (7.809.82) (7.809.82)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - B
Restated Balance as at April 1, 2021 (7,809.82) (7,809.82)
Profit for the year (11,581.76) (11,581.76)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of income lax) - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (11,581.76) {11,581.76)
Dividends paid
Balance at March 31, 2022 (19,391.58) (19,391.58)
Digitally signed by Digitally signed
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March 2022

Note: - 1 Corporate Information

Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (KRCL) is a public limited company domiciled and was incorparated in India on October 11, 2006 as a Special Purpose Vahicla
(SPV) for the purpose of constructing the Krishnapatnam-Obulavaripalle New Railway Line (Andhra Pradesh) Project. The Company is a Joinl Venture between Rail Vikas
Nigam Limited (RVNL), Krishnapalnam Port Company Limited, National Mineral Development Corporation, Government of Andhra Pradesh, and Bramhani Industries
Limitatl. The registered office of the company is localed al Door no. 9-1-164/A to 166 5th Floor Amsri Faust Complex Sarojini Devi Road, Secunderabad, Telangana

The Company has entered into a Concession Agresment with Ministry of Railways (MoR), Governmenl of India daled 23rd November, 2007 in lerms of which the Ministry
of Railways (Concession Aulhority) has authorized lhe Company (Concessionaire) to develop, finance, design, engineer, procure, construcl, operate and maintain the
Project Railway and to exercise and/or enjoy the rights, powers, benefits, privileges authorizations and entitlements upon its completion. Further, in terms of the said
agresment, the South Central Railway (SCR) will lease the existing Land to the company for the purpose of the Project, lease rental for which shall be as per lhe extant
policy of lhe MoR as revised from time to lime and the new land acquired by it in lieu of a nominal Annual Lease rental of T 1 as referred to in the Lease Deed forming
part of the Concession Agreement. Further new Land acquisition will be done by KRCL (through SCR) and will remain the properly of KRCL till the expiry of 30 year lease
period or Net presenl Value (NPV) payback equal to equity invesiment @14% whichever is earlier. In case the NPV payback is reached earlier than 30 years, the
concession agreement would stand terminated and the project line would be repossessed by Railway.

The Operation and Maintenance of the Phase 1 project Railway is being conducted by South Central Railway (SCR) under its right, vide Operation and Maintenance
agreement which is co-terminus with the Concession Agreement, entered into between the MoR and KRCL. Furlher, in terms of Lhis agreement, SCR is to operate tralfic
(Passenger & Freight), collect revenue, maintain the fagility and is required to pass-on the apportioned revenue and operation & Maintenance cost to Krishiapainim
Raliway Company Limited (KRCL).

Phase-1 of the Project involving lhe laying of Railway line of 24.5 Km from Krishnapatnam to Venkatachalam (as per concession agreement signed on 03-11-2007} has
been completed and commercial traffic is being operaled on the same w.e.f from November 15th, 2008,

Phase-2 of the Project involving the laying of Railway line of 93.0 Km from Venkatachalam to Obulavaripalle (as per concession agreement signed on 03-11-2007) has
been completed and commercial traffic is being operated on the same w.e.f from July 3rd, 2019.

Phase-3 of the Project involving the doubling of the track laid down in phase 1 has been completed and commercial lraffic is being operated on lhe same w.e.f. from 2nd
March 2014

After commissioning of the line belween OBVP and VJRN, certain ancillary works are under process as on date
The financial statements are aulhorised for issus in accordance with a resolulion of the board of directors on 28th Juns 2022,

Note: - 2 Basis of Preparatlon, Accounting policles and measurement methods

2.1 Statement of Compllance

The financial statemenls as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under
saction 133 of the Companies Act 2013, as companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time Lo time.
Assels and liabilities are classified between current and non-current considering 12 months period as operating cycle

2.2 Basls of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the following item that have been measured at fair
value as required by relevant Ind-AS.

(a) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer note no. 5.1 and 12 2)

2.3 Use of estimates and Judgment

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
actolinting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabililies at the dale of financial slatements and the reported
amount of income and expenses, Examples of such eslimales Includes estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment . Actual results may differ from (hese
aalimates,

Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Future results could differ due to changes in these estimales and difference between the actual
result and the estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known /materialize.

All financial informalion presenled in Indian rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs up lo two decimals except where otherwise staled

2.4 Statement of Cash Flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusled for the effects of transactions of non-cash nalure and any deferrals or
accruals of pasl or future cash receipls or payments. The cash flows from operating. invesling and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on ha
available information

For the purposes of statement of cash flow , cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash al banks and demand deposits wilh banks, net of outstanding barnk
overdrafts that are repayable on demand are considerad part of the Company's cash management system.

2.6 Functional and Presentation Currency

Itams included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operales (i.e. Functional
Gurrancy). The financial slatements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of the company.
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2.8 Property, Plant and Equipment
A (a) Property, plant and equipment are measured al cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any Cosl of assel includes the following

(i) Cost directly atlributable lo the acquisition of the assets

(ii) Present value of lhe estimaled costs of dismantiing & removing the items & restoring the sile on which it is located if recognilion criteria are met,
(b} Cosl of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met

(c) An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from conlinued use of assets. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant an equipment is determined as lhe difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of lhe asset and is recognised in statement of profil or loss.

B Depreclation
(a) Deprecialion on Properly, plant and Equipment is provided on pro-rata basis on written down value (WDV) on all assets on this basis of life provided by lhe

Companies Act 2013,
(b} Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipmenl is depreciated separately if lhe cosl of part s significant in relation Lo lhe total cost of the item and useful life of
that part is different from lhe useful life of remaining asset.

The estimated useful life of assels for significant items of property plant and equipment are as follows:
Useful Life (In Years)

Particulars

Office Building 30

Furnilure & Fixlure 10
5

Office Equipment's
EDP Assets 3
(¢) Leasehold improvements are amorlized over the period of lease from lhe month in which such improvements are capitalised or over the useful life as computed under

Companies Act 2013 whichever is lower.
(d) Deprecialion methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date, with the effect of change in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis

2.7 Intanglble Assets
Frelght Sharing Right (Rallway Line under SCA)

The company recognizes an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has a righl to charge for usage of the concession infrastructure. An
intangible assel received as consideration for providing construction or upgrade services in a service concession arrangement is measured at fair value on initial
recognition by reference to the fair value of lhe services provided. Subsequenlt to initial recognition, the intangible asset is measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement is the period from when the company is able to charge the public for the use of the
infrastructure to the end of the concession period (i.e. 30 year of operation or Net present Value (NPV) payback equal to equily investment @14% whichever is earlier.).,

Freight sharing right is amortised using the straight line method on prorate basis from the date of addition or from the date when the right brought in lo service to the
expiry of 30 year of operation or Nel present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investmenl @14% whichever is earlier.

Amortisalion methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporling date, with the effect of change in estimale accounted for on a prospective basis.

The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.
2.8 Intangible Assets under development
Freight sharing right under development
Expenditure which can be directly idenlifiable & fair value adjustment of land relaled lo lhe service concession arrangements are recognised to freight sharing right under
development
The following amounts are reduced from the intangibte under development:

(a) Interesl earned on the Mobilization Advances given in respect of he project execution

{b} Amount received on sale of tender.

(c) Interest received on FD created our of Borrowed fund, which was taken for exclusively project expenditure.

2.9 Provislons
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable eslimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best eslimate of the expenditure required
to setlle the present obligation at the Balance sheel dale. Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheel date

Provision which expected to be settied beyond 12 months are measured at the present value by using pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liabilily
The increase in the provision dus to the passage of time is recognized as interest expenses

In respect of Operalion & Maintenance expenses through SCR. same are accounted for on the basis of information received from South Central Railway (SCR)
Whenever such information is not received, same is accounted for on pro-rala estimated basis.

igil i Digitally signed
Digitally signed by
SIVA SIVA PRASAD T M U N' l;éXS%gNI

PRASAD  kasturl
: Date; 202206 28
7D kasum Bibumn PRASADmec




2,10 Revenue Recognition

a) Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to

which the Company expects 1o be entilled in exchange for those goods or services

b) Revenue from Rallway Operation
The oparaling meame of 1ha company is recagrized on paint in time as per the provisional figures advised by South Cenlral Railway for the share of revenue due to the

campany from the opzralions of goods traffic.
Operating revenue and pparation & mantenance cost of earlier years in respecl of operation of goods lrains are accounted for in the year of advice of provisional figures
by the Soulh Centra! Railway.

c) Constructlon Contract Revenue under SCA

Revenue related lo conslruclion or upgrade services under a service concession arrangement is recognized based on lhe slage of complelion of the work performed,
when the outcome of construction contract can be measured reliably and where the outcome of construclion contracl can not be measured reliably , revenue is
recognised only to the extent of conlracl cost incurred that is probable to be recoverable. Performance obligation is measured by the company on the basis of inputs lo

Ihe satisfaction of a performance obligation (i.e, Input Method).

d) Other Revenue Recognition
Interest income is recognized on a time proporlion basis taking into account the amount outslanding and the interest rate applicable using Effective Interest rate Method

2.11 Leasing

I. As a Lessee

The Cempany Recognizes a right-to- use asset and a lease liabilily at the lease commencement date. The right of-use assel is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the inilial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made al or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct cost incurred and an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or lo restore the underlying asset or lhe site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received

The right-to-use assel is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the sarlier of the end of the useful life of the right-to-
use-asset or the end of the lease term, The estimated useful life of the right-to-use asset is determined on lhe same basis as lhose of property, plant and equipment. In
addition, the right-to-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is inilially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are nol paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if lhat rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using Lhe effective interest method, it is remeasured when there is a change in fulure lease paymenls from a change in
an index or rate. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right -of-use assel, or is recorded in
the profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero

The Company presents right-of-use asset hal do not meet Lhe definilion of Investment property in the "Property plant and equipment’ and lease liabililies in “other
financial liabilities” in the Balance Sheet

Short term Lease and Leases of low value assels,
The Company has elecled not to recognize right-of-use asset and leass liabilities for short term leases that have lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value
assels, The Company recognizes the lease payments associaled with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Il. As A Lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Company
makes an overall assessment of whelher the leass transfers substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to lhe ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case,
then lhe leass is a finance leass, if nol then it is an operating lease. As part of the assessment, the Company considers certain indicalors such as whether the lease is for

the major part of lhe economic life of the asset
If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS-115 “Revenuse from contract with customers” to allocate the consideration in

the contract

2.12 Impalment of Non-Flnanclal Assets

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-36 Impairment of Assets, lhe carrying amounts of Company's assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet dale to
determine whether lhere is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is eslimated as the higher of the net selling price or|
Ihe value in use, Animpairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unil exceeds its recoverable amount.

2.13 BorrowlIng Cost

General and specific borrowing costs direclly attributable to the acquisilion, construction or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of lhe cost of such
assets lill such lime the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substanlial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowings costs are recognized in the slatement of Profit and Loss in the period in which lhey are incurred.

2,14 Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounled amount of shorl term employee benefits expected to be paid for the services rendered are recognized as an expense during the period when the
employees render the services

2.15 Taxes

a) Current Income Tax

(i) Tax on income for the current year is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credils computed in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
based on the expected outcome of the assessment /appeals

(m) Current income tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
liability for additional taxes if any, is provided / paid as and when assessmenls are completed

(it} Current tax related to OCI Item are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl).
igilally signed by Digitally signed b
v g TMUNI Sasva

PRASAD  xastu
A Date: 2022.06.28
-@.ﬂ\é KASTURL  Teseaorosao PRASAD is3230 0550

o
<3
(5




b) Deferred Tax
(i) Deferred income tax assets and liabililies are recognized for temporary differences which is computed using the tax rates and tax laws hat have been enacted or

substantively enacled at lhe reporting date

(i) Deferred income tax assel are recognized lo the extent thal it is probable that laxable profit will be available against which the deduclible temporary differences, and
tha carry forward of unused lax credits and unused lax losses can be utilized

{lii} The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extenl that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized

{lv} Deferred lax relaled to QCI Item are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Minimum Alternative Tax credit is recognized as an assel only when and to the extenl there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during
the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheel date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is wrilten down to the extent there is no longer a
convincing evidence to Lhe effecl thal the Company will pay narmal income tax during the specified period

2.16 Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers Ihe net profit attributable to equity shareholders. The number of shares used in compuling basic earnings
per share is the weighled average number of shares outslanding during the period. In determining diluted earnings per share, the nel profil atlribulable to equity
sharaholdars and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

£.17 Contingent Llabliitles and Contlngent Assets
(a) Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in either of the following cases:

{i) A present obligation arising from a past event, when it is nol probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seltle the obligation; or

(ii) A reliable estimate of the present obligation cannot be made; or
{iii) A possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resource is remote
(b} Conlingent assets is disclosed where an inflow of ecoromic benefits is probable

(e} Contingent Liabilily and Provisions needed against Contingent Liability and Conlingent Assels are reviewed at each Reporting date

(d} Conlingent Liability is net of eslimated provisions considering possible outflow on selllement.

218 Non-Derivative Financlal Assets

The company recognizes a financial assel arising from a service concession arrangement when il has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction or upgrade services provided, Such financial assets are measured al fair value on initial
recognition and classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent lo inilial recognition, the financial assets are measured at amortized cost

If the company is paid for the construction services parlly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then each component of the consideration is accounted
for separalely and is recognized initially at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable

2,19 Fair Value Measurement

Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly lransaction between markel participants at the measurement dale. The fair value measurement is based on lhe presumplion that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liabilily takes place eilher:

« in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that markel
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming thal market participants act in their economic best interest, The company uses valualion techniques
Ihat are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial stalements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowesl level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

1- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markets for idenlical assets or liabilities

2 -Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant Lo the fair value measurement is direclly or indirectly observable
3 -Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input Ihat is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
lha hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input lhat is significant to the fair value measuremenl as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period
At the reporling date, lhe Company analyses the movements in Lhe values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the

accounling policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies he major inpuls applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the informalion in lhe valuation computation to
conlracts and other relevant documents

Thia Company also compares the change in Ihe fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, lhe Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

The fair value of an intangible asset recsived as consideration for providing construction services in a service concession arrangement is eslimated by reference to the
fair value of the conslruction services provided. When the company receives an intangible assel and a financial asset as consideration for providing construction services
in a service concession arrangement, the company estimates the fair value of intangible assels as the difference between the fair value of the construction services
provided and the fair value of the financial assel istwivad

2.20 Dlvidend to Equity Holders
Dividend paid/payabie shall be recognised in the year in which the related dividends are approved by shareholders or board of directors as appropriales
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2.21 Financial Instruments:-

{a) Initial Recognition and Measurement
Finanaial Instruments recognized at its fair value plus or minus lransaction costs that are direclly altributable to the acquisition or issue of lhe financial instruments

() Subsequent Measurement

Financial Assets

financial assets are classified in following categories

(i) At Amortised Cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of he following condilions are met:

(a) The Financial Asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assels in order to collect contraclual cash flows and

{b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are solely paymenls of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
Financial assels measured at amortised cost using effeclive inlerest rale melhod less impairment if any. The EIR amortisalion is included in finance income in tha
stateiment of profit and loss
{if) At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if bolh of the following criteria are met:

The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contraclual cash flows and selling lhe financial assets, and

The asset's conlractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debl instruments included within the FVTOC) category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
othar comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
de-racoghition of the assel, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Inleresl earned is recognised using the EIR

miethod.

(iil) At Falr Value Through Profit and Loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial Assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet (he criteria for categorization as at amartized cosl or as FVTOCI, is classified
as at FVTPL

In addilion, the company may elect to designale financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI crileria, as al FVTPL. If doing so reduces or aliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency. The company has not designated any financial asset as at FVTPL

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L

Financial Llabliities

() FInanclial Liabllitles at Amortised Cost

Finaricial liabilities at amortised cost represenled by trade and other payables, security deposits and relention money are initially recognized at fair value, and
subsequently carried at amorlized cost using the effeclive interest rate method

(li} Financial llabilities at FVTPL

The company has not designated any financial liabililies at FVTPL.

{c) Derecognition
Financlal Asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial assel or part of a group of similar financial assels) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from he asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks s and rewards of the ownership of lhe asset

Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an exisling financial liability is replaced by anothar
frim the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modificalion is trealed as a
Derecognilion of lhe original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in lhe respeclive carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement

(d) Impairment of Financial Assets:
Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognilion of impairment loss. The Company follows' simplified approach' for recognilion of
Impairment loss allowance on trade receivable. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to lrack changes in credit risk. Ralher, it recognises
impalrment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs al each reporting date, right from ils initial recognition

Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expecled credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt inslruments. The
impairment methodology applies on whether there has been significant increase in credit risk

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in lhe statement of profit and loss

2.22 Non-Current Assets held for Sale
Mon-current assels are classified as assats held for sale when lheir carrying amount is to be recovered principally lhrough a sale transaction and a sale is cansidared
highly probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condilion, it is unlikely thal the
sale will be withdrawn and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classificalion Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated al the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for sale.
Assets and liabililies classified as held for sale are presenled separately in the balance sheet

If Ihe criteria staled by IND AS 105 “Non-Currenl Assets Held for Sale and Disconlinued Operations” are no longer met, the disposal group ceases lo be classified as held
as held for sale. Non-currenl asset that ceases to be classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held
far sale ,adjusted for depreciation that would have been recognised had that asset not besn classified as held for sale, and (i) its recoverable amount at lhe dale when
{he disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale

2.23 Standard/Amendments issued but not yet effective
MCA had issued lhe Indian Accounting Standards Amendments Rules, 2022 vide notificalion dated 23rd March 2022.In the Indian Accounting Standards Amendments
Rules, 2022, amendments has been made in following standards:-

1. First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Slandards (Ind AS-101)

2, Business Combinations (Ind AS-103)

3, Financial Instruments (Ind AS-109)

4. Property. Plant and Equipment (Ind AS-16)

5. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Conlingent Assets (Ind AS-37)
. Agricullure (ind AS-41)

The effective date of these amendments is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2022, The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the amendments and
has not yel delermined the impact on the financial stat
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Notes 3: Property, Plant and Equipment

_ RinLakhs)

Particulars O.ffu':e Furruture & C?fﬁce EDP Assets Total
Building Fixture Equipments

Cost or Deemed Cost
As at 01 April 2020 456.74 0.46 0.77 2.30 460,27
Additions - - 2.25 0.38 2.63
Disposals/Adjustments - - (0.18) (0.60) (0.78)
At 31 March 2021 456.74 0.46 2.84 2.08 462.12
Additions E 0.06 1.08 1.14
Disposals/Adjustments - - -
At 31 March 2022 456.74 0.46 2.90 3.16 463.26
Depreciation and Impairment
At 01 April 2020 179.47 0.19 0.22 1.24 181.12
Depreciation charge for the year 26.34 0.07 0.78 0.756 27.94
Impairment B - - - -
Disposals/Adjustments - - (0.12) (0.39) (0.51)
At 31 March 2021 205.81 0.26 0.88 1.60 208.55
Depreciation charge for the year 23.84 0.05 0.90 0.61 25.40
Impairment - - - -
Disposals/Adjustments - - - - -
At 31 March 2022 229.65 0.31 1.78 2.21 233.95
Net carrying amount
At 31 March 2022 227.09 0.15 1.12 0.95 229.31
At 31 March 2021 250.93 0.20 1.96 0.48 253.57

Note 3.1 : The Company has purchased a property for the purpose of administration which is temporarily idle with carrying amount of T
227.09 Lakhs as at 31st March 2022 (as at 31 March 2021: ¥ 250.93 Lakhs).

Note 3.2 : Property Plant & Equipment with a carrying amount of  229.31 Lakhs as at 31st March 2022 (as at 31st March 2021: ¥ 253.57
Lakhs) are charged with secured Company's loans. The property plant and equipment having gross carrying amount of ¥ 1.91 Lakhs at

31st March 2022 (X 1.68 Lakhs at 31st March 2021) are held in the name of Employees.

Note 3.3 : In compliance with IndAS 101, the company has restated the gross block of Property, Plant and Equipment by reducing
accumulated depreciation by T 21.45 Lakhs at the time of transition to Ind AS.

Note 3.4 There is no change in value of Property, Plant and Equipment due to revaluation.
Note 3.5 Title deeds of all immovable property are held in the name of company.
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Note 4: Other Intangible Assets

L (T in Lakhs)
Particulars Reven;ieg:tharmg Total
Cost or Deemed Cost
At 01 April 2020 2,80,428.86 2,80,428.86
Additions 2,898.80 2,899.80
Disposals/Adjustments
At 31 March 2021 2,83,328.66 2,83,328.66
Additions 536.32 536.32
Disposals/Adjustments 1,316.17 1,316.17
At 31 March 2022 2,82,548.81 2,82,548.81
Amortisation and Impairment
At 1 April 2020 9,929.06 9,929.06
Amortisation for the year 9,542.71 9,542.71
Impairment . =
Disposals/Adjustments - -
At 31 March 2021 19,471.77 19,471.77
Amortisation for the year 9,458.51 9,458.51
Impairment - -
Disposals/Adjustments - -
At 31 March 2022 28,930.28 28,930.28
Net book value
At 31 March 2022 2,53,618.53 2,53,618.53

2,63,856.89 2,63,856.89

At 31 March 2021

Note 4.1 : Amortisation on other intangible assets are included in Note no. 24 of Depreciation and Amortisation.

Note 4.2 : All Intangible with a carrying amount of ¥ 2,53,618.53 Lakhs as at 31st March 2022 (as at 31st March 2021: ¥ 2,63,856.89
Lakhs) are charged with secured Company’s loans.

Note 4.3 : In compliance with the Ind AS 101, The Company has restated the Gross Block of Intangible Assets by reducing accumulated
depreciation by ¥ 9,626.84 Lakhs at the time of transition to Ind AS.

Note 4.4 Title of Leasehold Land represents land acquired is with South Central Railway and the company hold the leasehold rights on
the Land till the period of Concession Agreement i.e. 30 years or on to attainment of the Net Present Value (NPV) payback equal to
equity investment @14% whichever is earlier . In case the NPV payback is reached earlier than 30 years, the concession agreement
would stand terminated and the project line would be repossessed by Railway.

The Leasehold Land acquired by KRCL {through SCR) will remain with the KRCL till the period of Concession Agreement and thereafter
will revert to SCR since, the value of land will be recovered from SCR.

Note 4.5 Intangible Assets includes expenditure on account of Directional & General Charges (D&G charges) amounting to ¥ (78.21)
Lakhs (Previous Year ¥ 232.07 Lakhs) as charged by RVNL (Project Contractor) during the period which is as per the clause no. 10.2 of
Construction Agreement dated 29th September 2011, is subject to change based on outcoms of actual final completion cost. Cumulative
D&G Charges up to 31st March 2022 is ¥ 17,511 Lakhs (Previous Year Z 17,589.21 Lakhs) is subject to change.

Note 4.6 There is no change in value of Intangible Assets due to revaluation.
Note 4.7 The cumulative project cost over and above the estimated cost has been approved by the Board of Directars, However, the

company is still receiving expenditure bills from RVNL, after commencement of operation of the project line. Details of project cost are to
be made available by RVNL. RVNL is yet to submit project cost/completion/handover certificaite to the company.
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Notes §: Financial Assets

Note 5.1, Other Financial Assets
(€ in Lakiw)

As at 31st March

Particulars As at 31st March

2022 2021
Al Amortised cost
Securily deposit 1,50 1.50
Receivable from Soulh Cenlral Railway under Service Concession 1,00197 2,060.20
Arrangemenl (Value of land)
(Refer note-28)
Total 1,903.47 2,070.70

Note 6: Other Non-Current Assets
% in Lakhs)
As at 31st March
2021

As at 31st March

Particulars 2022

a) Capital Advances
Advances towards Projecl Expenditure
« MabHizalion and allsr Advarica
Total <

50,00
50,00

Note 7: Financial Assets - Current

7.1 Trade Receivables
(T In Lakhs)
As at 31st March
2021

As at 31st March

Particulars 2022

Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good
- Trade receivables

4.801.97 5,210.65

Total 4,801.97 6,210.66

7.1.1 Ageing Schedule of Trade receivable

As at 315t March 2022

Outstanding for

Not Due Less than 6

months

Particulars

4,901.97

6 months -

1 year

1year-
2years

2yearstod
years

More than 3

years

Total

4,901.87

{1l Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

(i)  Undispuled Trade Receivables — which have significanl increase in
credit risk

(i) _Undisputed Trade Receivables — credil impaired = -

litv)__Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good : -

{v) Dispuled Trade Rensivabiles — which hava simificant increase n credil

1tk
|{vi) _Disputed Trade Receivables — credit Impaired I =

Total 4,801.97 -

4,901,97

A ot 318t March 2021

a vy for following perinds from dus date of

Not Due Less than 6

months

Particulars

6 months -

1 year

1year-
2years

2yearsto 3
years

More than 3
years

Tatal

i L Trade recei = idered aond 521065

5210865

(i} _Undispuled Trade Receivables — which have significanl increase in -

[} __Undispuled Trade Receivables — credll impaired | 5

{v)__Disputed Trade Reegvables— conaldered good * 3

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significanit Increase i coodit =

rlak
{vit _Diisputed Trade Reconvafles - oredit iinpaired =

5,210.65 -

5,210.65

Note 7.1.2 The rade receivable represents the amounl receivable from Lhe Soulh Cenlral Railway (SCR) being the gross revenue apparfioned and are non interest bearing, Since, ihe revenue apporiioned by

bles and Lheir

(he South Central Raitway is on provisional basis and the final figures may vary, the above lcade 1
lakhs {March 31st 2021 T 5,210.65/- Lakhs) is subjecl o confirmation by (he South Central Railway.

Note 7.1.3 Trade receivables are non-inlerest bearing and are generally on terms of 15 to 75 days

1 is subject to change. Furlher, the amount of receivable being ¥ 4,901,97/

Note 7.1.4 No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly wilh any oiher person. No any lrade or olher receivable are due from firm or privale

companies respeclively in which any director is a pariner, a direclor or member
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Note 7.2: Cash and Cash Equivalents

— - o [ s L k)
i As at 31st March  As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021
Balances with banks:
— On current accounl 003 428
~ Term Deposits with original malurity of three months or less 2,800.00 4.400.00
Total 2,800.93 4,404,268
Note 7.2.1 As at 31st March 2022 lhe has i ing facility of ¥ 803.12/- Lakhs (As al
31st March 2021, ? 803.12/- Lakhs).
Note 7.3: Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalent
¥ In Lakils)
As at 31st March  As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021
Balances wlih banks:
— Term Deposil in Scheduled Banlk (Original Malurity more than 3 Months 5.664 66 5,000.00
bul less than 12 menths}
— On Escrow accounl, Earmarked Balance 608.13 600.88
Total 6,272.79 5,600.68

Note 7.3.1 The Amount lying in Escrow Accounl can be used by company in compliance wilh lerms of Loan Agreement

Note 7.4: Other Financial Assets-Current

1% in Lakhs)
As at 31st March  As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021
Recaivable from Banks towards Inleresl - 4343
Interesl Accrued on Fixed Deposils 68.61 11.90
Term Deposil In Scheduled Bank (Originat Malurily more (han 12 monlhs) 2.190.00
Total = 2,267,861 56.33
Note 8: Current Tax
{7 b Lasketi)
An at 31st March  As at 31st March
{f
Partlculars 2022 2021
Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax Paid / Tax Deducted at Source 520.22 483,50
Total 529.22 493.69
Note 9: Other Current Assets
(% In Lakhs)
As at 31st March  As at 31st March
Icula
fadticuiaes 2022 2021
a) Other than Capital Advances
Malnlenance Charges Building Assels - 200
Other Advances 012 515
b) Others
Prepaid Expenses 186.44 0.08
Total 189.56 7.23
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Note 10: Equity Share capital

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
10.1 Authorized Share Capital
65,00,00,000 Equity Share of ¥ 10 each 65,000.00 65,000.00
(March 31,2021: 65,00,00,000 Equity Share of ¥ 10 each)
65,000.00 65,000.00
10.2 Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capital
62,50,00,000 Equity Share of ¥ 10 each 62,500.00 62,500.00
(March 31,2021: 62,50,00,000 Equity Share of T 10 each)
62,500.00 62,500.00
10.3 Reconciliation of the number of Equity Shares and Share Capital (T in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
(in Lakhs) (in Lakhs) (in Lakhs) (in Lakhs)
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equily Capital outstanding 6,250.00 62,500.00 6,250.00 62,500.00
at the beginning of the year
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period error - - -

Restated balance at the beginning of current reporting - - -
period
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the current year - - -

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital
outstanding at the end of the year 6,250.00 62,500.00 6,250.00 62,500.00

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having par vaiue of T 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and

also to dividends in Indian Rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distributing all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

10.4 Details of Shares held by each Shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholder As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

No. of Shares % holding in No. of Shares % holding in
{(in Lakhs) the class (in Lakhs) the class

1 Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) 3,110.00 48.76% 3,110.00 49.76%
2 Krishnapatnam Port Company Ltd.(KPCL) 810.00 12.96% 810.00 12.96%
3 National Mineral Development Corporation (NMDC) 400.00 6.40% 400.00 6.40%
4  State of Andhra Pradesh (GOAP) 350.00 5.60% 350.00 5.60%
5 Bramhani Industries Limited (BIL) 330.00 5.28% 330.00 5.28%
6 Sagarmala Development Company Limited 1,250.00 20.00% 1.250.00 20.00%

Total 6,250.00 100.00% 6,250.00 100.00%

10.6 Aggregate number of Shares issued for consideration other than cash , Bonus Shares issued and Shares bought back during the year:-
(Shares in Lakhs)

As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st

March 2022 March 2021  March 2020 March 2019 March 2018

Equity Shares issued for consideration other than cash - - - 2,300,00 -

Equity Shares issued as fully paid up bonus shares - - - - -

Equity Shares bought back a = = - .

Particulars

Total - - - 2,300.00 -
10.6 Details of Shares held by Promoters
As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Percentage No. of Percentage
Name of Promoters No. of Shares| % holding in |(%) Change ¥ % holding in |(%) Change
, . Shares .
(in Lakhs) the class |during the (in Lakhs) the class |during the
year year
1 Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) 3,110.00 49.76% - 3,110.00 49.76% -
2 Krishnapatnam Port Company Ltd.(KPCL) 810.00 12.96% - 810.00 12.96% -
3 National Mineral Development Corporation (NMDC) 400.00 6.40% - 400.00 6.40% -
4 State of Andhra Pradesh (GOAP) 350.00 5.60% - 350.00 5.60% -
§ Bramhani Industries Limited (BIL) 330.00 5.28% - 330.00 5.28% -
6 Sagarmala Development Company Limited 1,250.00 20.00% - 1,250.00 20.00% -
Total 6,250.00 100.00% = 6,250.00 100.00% -
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Note 11: Other Equity

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March  As at 31st March
2022 2021
Retained Earnings (Refer Note 11.1) (19,391.58) (7,809.82)
Total {19,391.58) (7,809.82)
Note 11.1 Retained Earnings @ in Lakhs)
: As at 31st March  As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021
Opening Balance {7,809.82) 2,871.88
Add: Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (11,581.76) (10,681.70)
Total {19,391.58) (7,809.82)
Note 12: Financial Liability-Non Current
12.1 Borrowings
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March  As at 31st March
o 2022 2021
Secured- At Amortised Cost
Term Loans
From Banks 80,045.43 85,789.62
From Aditya Birla Finance Limited 12,506.25 13,376.25
Total 92,551.68 99,165.87
Less: Current Maturities of long term debt (Refer
Note 17.1) (7.360.40) (6,449.81)
Total 85.191.28 92,716.06

Note 12.1.1 Summary of Borrowing Arrangement

i) A Term Loan of T 93300 Lakh has been taken by the company from the Banks and ¥ 15000 Lakh from Aditya Birla Finance Limited against the revised
project cost under the common Loan agreement, out of which T 92996.88 Lakh has been disbursed by the Bank and ¥ 14500 Lakh has been disbursed by
Aditya Birla Finance Limited up to 31st March 2022. The term loan from Banks was initially availed in 2013, wherein first repayment due date was 30-06-
2017. Thereafter loan repayment was rescheduled in 2017 and 2019, as per revised COD, due date for payment of first installment was 30-09-2019.
Company has been regularly repaying installment of loan as per revised COD.

Note 12.1.2 Terms of Security for Loan are as follows:

The Secured Obligations shall, to the satisfaction of the Secured Parties, be secured to the extent permilted under the Concession Agreement by:-

a) a first mortgage and charge on all the Borrower's immovable properties, both present and future (save and except Project Site);(see note-3 and 4)

b} a first charge on all the Borrower's tangible moveable assets, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture,
fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, both present and future (save and except the Rolling Stocks);(see note-3)

c} a first charge on all bank accounts of the Borrower, including but not limited to the Trust and Retention Account and the Retention Accounts, or any
account in substitution thereof established and opened pursuant to the provisions of the TRA Agreement or any of the Project Documents wherein all
revenues, Drawdowns, Receivables and other funds of the Borrower shall be deposited from time to time and all Permitted Investments or other securities
representing all amounts credited to the TRA Account;(see note-7.3)

d) a first charge on all Receivables (including profits of the Borrower after provisions for Tax and dividends (if any as permitted under this Agreement) of the
Borrower pertaining to the Project; (see note-7.1)

e) a first charge on all intangibles of the Borrower including but not limited to goodwill, intellectual property rights, undertakings, present and future; (see
note-4)

f) a first charge on the uncalled capital of the Borrower;

9) a first charge/assignment of the security interest

(i) on all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in, to and under the Project Documents (excluding the
Concession Agreement); all as amended, varied or supplemented from time to time; and

(i) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in, to and under any letter of credit, guarantee including contractor
guarantees, liquidated damages and performance bonds provided by any party to the Project Documents (excluding the Concession Agreement);

Provided that the aforesaid, mortgages, charges, assignments and guarantees shall in all respects rank pari-passu inter-se amongst the Lenders without
any preference or priority to one over the other or others.

Note 12.1.3 Terms of Repayment
BRanks and Aditya Birla Finance Limited
Term loan is repayable in 52 Quarterly installments commencing on 30 September 2019 and last installment falls due on 30 June 2032, amount payable

during next 12 months is 7.00% of total term loan.

Note 12.1.4 Interest Terms
The Applicable Interest rate is SBI Base rate plus spread of 1.5% for both Banks and Aditya Birla Finance Limited. Company has requested to Banks for
reset of spread to 1% instead of 1.5%, some of banks has also agreed for reduction in rate of interest.
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12.2 Trade Payables

{€in Likhs)

Particulars As at 31st March  As at 31st March
2 2022 2021

At Amortised Cost
a) Total Qutstanding Due to Micro enterprises and small ) i
enterprises
b) Total Outstanding Due to creditors other than Micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Overhead Cost Payable (SCR) 75.09 129,12
Total 75.09 129.12
Total Financial Liabilities 85,266.37 92,845.18

Trade payable represents Overhead cost payable (i.e. Salary for RPF, medical and personnel, accounts and corresponding retirement benefits etc.) which
were not payable to South Central Railway as it was deferred for first five year of operation and same being payable by the company over a period of 10
years commencing from the 6th year of operation as per the O&M agreement. In terms of clause 3.1.8 of the operations and maintenance agreement dated
6th January, 2012,

As at 31st March 2022 (¥Tin Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Particulars Not Due payment Total
Less than 1 1-2 2-3years |More than 3
ess than 1 year -2 years y b ears
(i} MSME - - - - - -
(i} Others 75.09 - - - = 75.09
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
75.09 - - - - 75.09
As at 31st March 2021 (¥ in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Particulars Not Due payment Total
L than 1 1-2 years |2-3 years Mors than 3
ess than 1 year ye ye: years
(i) MSME - - = = = fr
(iy Others 129.12 - . - 5 129.12
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME . = N - - -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others = - = ¥ = :
129.12 . - - - 128.12
Note 13: Other Financial Liabilities-Non Current
(T in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2022 2021
Security deposits 6.50 -
Total 6.50 0.00
Note 14: Provisions
(% in Lakhs)
As at 31st March  As at 31st March
P I
articulary 2022 2021
Provisions for Re-Surfacing Cost 5,000.00 5,000.00
Total 5,000.00 5.000.00

In terms of Concession agreement, there is an obligation on the Company to keep the project assets in working condition, including making replacement,
as per laid down slandards of MOR, of all project assets whose codal life expire during the concession period. Accordingly, Company has made estimated
liability of T 5,000 lakhs by the end of financial year 2022 in respect of replacement obligations arising during the remaining concession period as per
requirement of Appendix D of the Ind AS 115. Based on said estimated liability, provision ¥ Nil for the period ended 31st March 2022 {for period ended 31st
March 2021 of ¥ 641.12 lakhs) has been made [Refer note no 25]. Interest cost of T Nil for the period ended 31st March 2022(% 411.51 lakhs for the period
ended 31st March 2021) have been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss [Refer note no 23).
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Note 15: Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Assets/Deferred Tax Liability (Net) € in Lakhs)
Particul As at 31st March  As at 31st March
articulars 2022 2021
Deferred tax liability 13,353.52 11,535.24
Deferred tax assets (20,485.64) (19,574.31)
Deferred tax liability (Net of deferred tax assets) (7,132.12) {(8,039.07)
The balance comprises to temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred Tax Assets
Unabsorbed Depreciation 19,185.64 15,739.04
Unused Tax Losses - 2,088.07
Provision for re-surfacing Cost 1,300.00 1,747.20
20,485.64 19,574.31
Deferred Tax Liability
Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets 13,353.52 11,535.24
13,353.52 11,535.24
Deferred Tax Assets /(Liability) 7,132.12 8,039.07
Note 16: Other Non Current Liability
(T in Lakhs)

. As at 31st March  As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021

a) Fair Valuation Adjustment-Financial Liabilities
Overhead Cost Payable

42,74 69.72

Total 42.74 69.72

It represents unamortized portion of the difference between the fair value of financial Liabilities on
initial recognition and expenditure incurred.

Note 17: Financial Liability-Current

17.1 Borrowings

(Z In Lakhs)
) As at 31st March  As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021
Current Maturities of fong term debt (Refer Note 12.1) 7,360.40 6,449.81
Total 7,360.40 6,449.81

Note : 17.1.1 : KRCL has requested for reduction in interest rates from SBI Base rate plus 1.5% to
SBI base rate plus 1%. The impact of raduction in rate of interest has been given in 4 loan accounts
by Banks. Further, banks has alsa granted benefit of interest charged for COVID 19 moratorium
period to loan accounts, benefit has been transferred to loan accounts by banks. Benefit of
additional interest paid including above adjustments is also adjusted in loan account outstanding
balance by Banks.

Accordingly, same has been adjusted against outstanding balance of loan account in financial
statements.

17.2 Trade Payables

{X In Lakhs)
N As at 31st March  As at 31st March

Particulars 2022 2024
a) Total Outstanding Due to Micro enterprises and small
enterprises < &
b) Total Qutstanding Due to creditors other than Micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Overhead Cost Payable (SCR) [Refer Note 12.2] 31.10 34.87
O&M Expenses Payable (SCR) 343.36 1,755.20
Trade Payable others 102.38 69.49
Total 476.84 1,859.56
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Note 17.2 Ageing Schedule

As at 31st March 2022 (¥ in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date
of payment

Particulars Unbilled Not Due Ty T Total

ess than ore than

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years
(i) MSME - = - = “ _
(i) Others 54.37 374.46 48.01 - - 476.84
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others E A = = N

54.37 374.46 48.01 - - - 476.84
As at 31st March 2021 - {¥in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date
f payment

Particulars Unbilled Not Due — 2Py | Total

ess than ore

1year 1-2 years | 2-3 years years
(i) MSME - & = - - - N
(i) Others 47.93 1,790.07 21.56 - = - 1,859.56
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - e - = - : =
{iv)Disputed dues - Others = = n = - i =

47.93 1,790.07 21.56 - - - 1.859.56

17.3 Other Financial Liability (T in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

2022 2021

Audit Fees Payable 3.84 3.35
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited [Refer Note 17.3.1] 1,38,141.22 1,28,7565.74
Expenses Payable 28,58 5.74
Security Deposit 47.92 47.31
Term Loans

From Banks - Interest Payable on Loan

(Refer Note 17.3.2) Hl7tS 1il5=3id
Total 1,38,338.71 1,28,927.51
Total Current Financial Liability 1,38,815.55 1,30,787.07

Note 17.3.1 Terms of Payment to RVNL

RVNL does not allow any credit period to company, In case of failure to make timely payment to RVNL, then the Interest is payable at the SBI base rate plus
one percent from the last date of the month in which expenditure is incurred and charged up to the date of actual payment received from company.

Note 17.3.2 Interest Payable on Loan

Bank has charged interest at different rate as compared to agreed rate for loan account. Accordingly, excess amount of interest charged by bank however,

not paid by company has been recognised as interest payable in financial statements pending settlement with banks.

Note 18: Other Current Liability

(¥ in Lakhs)
. As at 31st March  As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021
Statutory liabilities
TDS payable 234,72 192.89
GST Payable 7.67 3.12
Labour Cess 2.84 3.67
Provident Fund payable 0.30 0.34
Total 245.53 200.02
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Note 19: Revenue from Operations

(T in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31st, 2022

For the year ended
March 31st, 2021

Revenue from Contract with Customer:
a) Apportionment of Railway Freight
b) Income From Tower Car Hire
¢) Income From LC Gates
d)Construction Contract Revenue under SCA (Refer Note 28)
e) Income from Way Leave Charges
Total

23,166.51 18,319.29
33.64 -
23.70 -

- 2,899.80
0.06 B
23,223.91 21,219.09

Note (i) : Operating Income:

a) After completion of the Phase-I of the project on 15th November 2008, same is being operated by South Central Railway
(SCR) and revenue is being collected by SCR which has been apportioned between the company and various Zonal
Railways from 15th November 2008 in terms of Operation and Maintenance Agreement signed detailing the modalities of
revenue and cost sharing between the company and SCR. Phase 3 of the project is being operated from 2nd March 2014.
Phase-ll of project is being operated from 3rd July 2019,

Revenue is based on the Calculation sheets received from SCR showing Apportioned Revenue and O&M expenses on
Provisional basis. Also the Figures intimated by SCR are provisional and Subject to Confirmation. Hence any Impact arising
out of Confirmation of the Figures will be accounted for in the year in which it is finalized.

b) Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (KRCL) is anticipating earnings on Length of about 14.45 Km section from
Krishnapatnam Railway Station to the Buffer end of Port Siding from South Central Railway. This issue is under Arbitration.
Hence, the revenue reported is subject to the same.

¢) KRCL has been receiving revenue on account of Terminal Cost (per tonne) from South Central Railway (SCR) from 11th
August 2017 onwards. The company has been claiming for the similar payment of Terminal Cost for the period from 15th
November 2008 to 10th August 2017. This issue is also under Arbitration. Hence, the revenue reported is subject to the

same.
d) Further all supporting evidences related to revenue bookings are being controlled and managed by SCR.

Note 20 : Other Income
(¥ in Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31st, 2022 March 31st, 2021
Interest income on Bank FDR 328.64 354.52
Unwinding of discount on receivable from South Central Railway 292 08 21283
under SCA ' ‘
Income from reversal of Deferred Overhead Costs payable 26.98 26.98
Total §77.70 594.33
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Note 21 : Operation & Maintenance Expense (O&M Expenses)

(X in Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

EETETars March 31st, 2022 March 31st, 2021

Operation & Maintenance Expenses 3,032.80 3,004.12
Overhead Cost 269.99 297.12
Construction Contract Cost under SCA B 2,899.80
Total 3,302.79 6,201.04

Note (i) : Operation & Maintenance Expenses related to South Central Railway are recognized in current year as intimated
by South Central Railway are provisional and subject to Confirmation. Hence, any impact arising on the confirmation of the

figures will be accounted for in the year in which it is finalized.

Note (ii) Operation & Maintenance expenses are being accounted for in terms of the Operations and Maintenance
Agreement signed with South Central Railway for 119.895 Km Railway line from Obulavaripalle to Krishnapatham.

Note (iii) Operation & Maintenance expenses includes Lease Rent of ¥ 1 in accordance with terms of concession

agreement.

Note (iv) All supporting evidences related to O & M expenses incurred have been controlied and managed by SCR.

Note 22 : Employee Benefit Expenses

(T in Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Gl March 31st, 2022 March 31st, 2021
Salary & Wages 158.11 94.63
Contribution to Provident and Other funds 1.72 1.25
Staff Welfare Expenses 0.77 0.51
Total 160.60 96.39
Note 23 : Finance Costs

(T in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31st, 2022

For the year ended
March 31st, 2021

Interest cost:

Interest Expenses on Term Loan
Interest Expenses on RVNL Bills

Other Borrowing Cost:
Unwinding of discount on Overhead Costs payable

Unwinding of interest cost on Provision for Re-Ssurfacing
Interest on Taxes
Total

Digitally signed

by SIVA PRASAD
KASTURI

Date: 2022 06.28
17:03:07 +05'30°

SIVA
PRASAD
KASTURI!

€}

051

8,570.16 9,403.69
12,675.33 11,623.55
15.87 2213

- 411.51

0.07 0.01
21,261.43 21,460.89

i Hy si d
T MUN] oo sore /@/

PRASAD
PRA S A D Date: 2022.06.28

16:36:53 +05'30'




Note 24 : Depreciation and amortization

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31st, 2022

For the year ended
March 31st, 2021

Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment (Note 3)
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (Note 4)

Total

Note 25 : Other Expenses

25.40 27.94
9,458.51 9,542.71
9,483.91 9,670.65

(T in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31st, 2022

For the year ended
March 31st, 2021

(a) Legal & Professional Fees
(b) Travelling and Conveyance
(c) Payments to the Auditor as
(i) Auditor
(i) Taxation
(i) Reimbursement of expenses
(d) Telephone Charges
(e) Printing & Stationery
(f) Insurance Expenses
(9) Membership & Subscription Charges
(h) Repair & Maintenance
(i) Other Expenses
() Miscellaneous Expenses
(k) Expense for Technical Study
() Provisions for Re-surfacing Cost
(m) ROC Filing
(n) Advertisement Expenses
(o) Rent Expenses
(p) CSR Expenses

Total

112.05 105.67
42.65 14.53
2.48 1.70
1.06 0.71
0.15 0.35
2.06 1.51
0.32 0.24
86.14 73.29
1.40 1.00
5.38 2.92
0.21 0.67
2.16 1.33
4.43 -

- 641.12
0.19 0.01
3.54 3.09
3.47 3.85

- 40.52

267.69 892.51
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Note 26 : Income Tax Expense

Note 26.1 Income Tax Recognised in Profit and Loss

{Tin Lakhs)
Particul As at 31stMarch  As at 31st

o —— 2022 March 2021

Deferred tax:

In respect of the current year 906.95 (5,726.36)
Total 906.95 (5,726.36)
Note 26.2 Reconciliation between Tax Expense and the Accounting Profit :

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st
" 2022 March 2021
Accouptmg profit before tax from continuing (10,674.81) (16,408.06)
operations
Accounting Profit before Income Tax (10,674.81) (16,408.06)
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 26%
(31st March 2021: 34.944%)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible
Deferred Tax recognised (Reversed) 906.95 (5,726.36)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of _
previous year
Expenses disallowed as per income tax act, 1961 &
Total Tax Expense 906.95 (5,726.36)
Income tax expense repgrte.d in the st?tement of profit 906.95 (5.726.36)
and loss (relating to continuing operations)
906.95 (5,726.36)
Effective Income Tax Rate NA 34.90%

Note : Company is eligible for 80IA deduction in accordance with provisions of Income Tax Act 1961, therefore MAT credit is not recognised in

the financial statements.

Note 26.3 : Movement in Deferred Tax

Liability/(Assets) (T in Lakhs)
Property, Plant Provision for
Particulars andpll:gngible Unus.ec! Resurfacing SESge i Total
. Depreciation Losses
Equipment cost

Opening balance as at 1st April 2020 8,620.58 (9,553.92) (1,379.37) - (2,312.71)
Charged/(credited) during the period

To Profit and Loss 2,914.66 (6,185.12) (367.83) (2,088.07) (5,726.36)

To Other Comprehensive Income - - - -
Closing balance as at 31st March 2021 11,535.24 (15,739.04) (1,747.20) (2,088.07) (8,039.07)
Charged/(credited) during the period

To Profit and Loss 1,818.28 (3,446.60) 447.20 2,088.07 906.95

To Other Comprehensive Income - - - -
Closing balance as at 31st March 2022 13,353.52 (19,185.64) (1,300.00) - (7,132.12)

Note 26.3.1 : Deferred Tax Assets on unused tax losses as on 31st March 2022 is not recognised in accordance with para 34 of Ind AS 12.
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Note 27: Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Year ended 31st Year ended 31st

anfiegRe March, 2022 March, 2021

(T per share) (X per share)
Basic EPS
From continuing operation (1.85) (1.71)
From discontinuing operation = =
Diluted EPS
From continuing operation (1.85) (1.71)

From discontinuing operation

27.1 Basic Earning per Share
average number of equity

(R in Lakhs)
Particul Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
e March, 2022 March, 2021
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company:
Continuing operations (11,581.76) (10,681.70)
Discontinuing operations
Earnings used in calculation of Basic Earning Per (11,581.76) (10,681.70)
Share
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose 6,250 6,250

of basic earnings per share ( In Lakhs)

27.2 Diluted Earning per Share
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of diluted

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the company:
Continuing operations (11,581.76) (10,681.70)
Discontinuing operations
Earnings used in calculation of diluted Earning Per (11,581.76) (10,681.70)

Share from continuing operations

The weighted number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earning per share reconciles to
the weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic earning per share as
follows:

(Number of shares in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31st  Year ended 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021

Weighted average number of Equity shares used in
calculation of basic earnings per share 6,250 8250
Effect of dilution: - -
Share Options
Weighted average number of Equity shares used in
calculation of diluted earnings per share e’ Gl
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Note: 28 Service C {on Arrang.
Public-to-privale service concession arrangements are recorded according lo "Service Concession Arrangements” IND-AS-115 Appendix "D" applies if:

a)  The Grantor conlrols or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure, lo whom it musl provide them, and at what price; and

b)  The grantor controls-lhrough ownership, beneficial entitlement, or olherwise- any significant residual interesl in the infrastructure at the end of the lerm of the
arrangemsnt

If both of the above condilions are mel simultaneously, an intangible asset is recognized to lhe extent that the operator receives the right to charge users of the public
service, provided that lhese charges are condilional on the degree to which Lhe service is used

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct costs directly atlributable lo lhe
operalion. They are lhen amortized over lhe term of the concession

The KRCL{Company) has entered into a Concession Agreement with Ministry of Railways (MoR), Government of India dated 23rd November, 2007 in lerms of which
lhe Ministry of Railways (Grantor) has aulhorized the Company (Operator) lo develop, finance, design. engineer, procure, construct, operate and maintain the Project
Railway and to exercise and/or enjoy the righls, powers, benefits, privileges authorizations and entitlements upon its completion. In lerms of lhe said agreement KRCL
has an obligation to complete construction of the project Railway and to keep the project assets in proper working condition including all projecls assets whose lives
have expired.

The concession period is determined with reference to attainment of NPV payback benchmark at the rate of return of 14% The concession period shall be 30 years of
operation or till the NPV payback equal to squity investment is reached, whichever is earlier. In case the NPV payback is reached earlier than 30 years, lhe concession
agreement would stand lerminated and the project line would be re-possessed by Railway

At lhe end of concession period, the projecl assels shall be hand over by KRCL to MOR and KRCL shall be entitled to receive and MOR shall pay to KRCL an amount
equal to the value of new assets and addilional facilities created by the KRCL net of depreciation and amortisation, The original existing assets leased to KRCL by
MOR shalt revert back to MOR. The fresh land acquired by MOR and leased to KRCL shall also revert back to MOR on paymenl of an amount equal to the cost of
acquisition.

In terms of lhe above agresment upon expiry of 30 years of operation Ihe concession period shall be extended by an equal period of time which corresponds to the
period for which material disruplion of operation and mainlenance occurred during the concession period. However such extension will be limiled to provision that if
NPV payback equal to equity invesiment is reached earlier then the period so extended , lhe concession period would stand lerminated.

In case of material breach in terms of the agreement the MOR and KRCL bolh have the right to terminate the agreement if they are not able to cure the evenl of default
in accordance wilh such agreement

The Operation and Maintenance of lhe project Railway is being conducted by MOR through Soulh Central Railway (SCR) under its right, vide Operation and
Maintenance agreement which is co-terminus wilh Ihe Concession Agreement, entered inlo between the MoR and KRCL. Further, in terms of this agreement, SCR is to
operate traffic (Passenger & Freight), collect revenus, maintain the facility and is required to pass-on the apportioned revenue and operation & Maintenance cost to
Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (KRCL).

The above projecl is covered in three phase :

Phase-1 of the Projecl involving the laying of Railway line of 24.5 Km from Krishnapatnam lo Venkatachalam (as per concession agreement signed on 23-11-2007)
has been completed and commercial traffic is being operated on the same w.e.f from November 15th, 2008,

Phase-2 of the Praject involving lhe laying of Railway line of 93.0 Km from Venkatachalam to Obulavaripalle (as per concession agreement signed on 23-11-2007)
has been completed and commercial traffic is being operated on the same w.e.f from July 3rd, 2019,

Phase-3 of the Project involving the doubling of Lhe track laid down in phase 1 has been completed and commercial Iraffic is being operated on he same w.e.f. from
2nd March 2014.

For the period ended 31st March 2022, the company has recognized revenue of ¥ 23,223.91 Lakhs (for the year ended 31st March 2021: ¥ 21,219.09 Lakhs),
consisting of  Nil (for the year ended : 31st March 2021: ¥ 2,899.80 Lakhs) on construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement and
23,223.91 Lakhs (for the year ended 31st March 2021: ¥ 18,319.29 Lakhs) towards other operating revenue. Company has recognized Loss of T 10,674.81 Lakhs for
the period ended 31st March 2022 (Loss for the year ended 31st March 2021: ¥ 16,408,086 Lakhs) , consisting of a nil profit on construction of intangible assets under
service concession arrangement and a Loss of ¥ 10,674 81 Lakhs for lhe period ended 31st March 2022 (Loss for lhe year ended 31st March 2021: T 16,408,06
Lakhs) towards Olher Oepraling Revenue.

The revenue recognized in relation to construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement in the period ended 31st March 2022 represents the fair
value of services provided towards construclion of inlangible assets under service concession arrangement. The company has recognized recsivable under service
concession arrangement measured at the fair value at 31sl March 2022 of ¥ 1901.97 Lakhs (at 31st March 2021 : ¥ 2,069.20 Lakhs), representing lhe present value of
fresh land acquired by MOR and leased to KRCL which is recoverable at the end of concession period from MOR of which ¥ 1198.22 Lakhs (at 31st March 2021: T
976,14 Lakhs) represents accrued interest as al 31st March 2022. The company has recognized an intangible asset of Z Nil (31st March 2021: T 2,898.80) during the
year, of which ¥ 9,458.51 Lakhs (31st March 2021 : ¥ 9,642.71) has been amorlized during the period ended 31sl March 2022, The intangible asset represents lhe
freight sharing rights lo receive freight traffic earnings under service concession agreement,
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Note 28.1: DIsaggregation of Revenue (T in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March 2022 March 2021

Construction Conlracl Revenue under

SCA - 2,899.80
Sale/Rendering of services 23,223.91 18,319 29
T 2322391 21,219.09
Note 28.2: Contract Balances (€ in Lakhs)
As at 31st As at 31st
i March 2022 March 2021
Trade receivables 4,901.97 5,210 65

Contract assets . -
Contract liabilities = &

Note 28.3: Contract Assets (T in Lakhs)
As at 31st As at 31st

Rarsiculars March 2022 March 2021

Contract Asset at the beginning of the

year = :

Transfer from Contract Asset to Trade
Receivable and increase as a result of
changes in measure of progress.

Contract Asset at the end of the year

Note 28.4: Contract Llabllities _Zin Lakhs)
As at 31st As at 31st
March 2022 March 2021

Particulars

Contract Liabilities al Ihe beginning of

the year - -
Transfer from Contract Liabilities to

Revenue and increase as a result of

changes in measure of progress. -

Contract Liabilities at the end of the

year - -

There was no revenue recognized in the current reporting period that related to performance obligations thal were salisfied in a prior year.

Notes :29 Capltal Management

The company objective to manage its capital in a manner to ensure and safeguard lheir ability to continue as a going concern so that company can
continue to provide maximum returns to share holders and benefit to other stake holders.

Further, company manages its capital structure to make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. The company maintain an optimal capital structure of Debt equity to reduce the cosl of capital, The company debts includes
long term debt , interest bearing loans and borrowings from banks

e (¥inLakhs)
Partleulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Borrowing (Nots No. 12 1) 92,551.68 99,165 87
Net debt 92,661.68 99,166.87
Equity (Note No. 10) 62,500.00 62,500.00
Other equity (Note No. 11) (19.391.58) (7.809.82)
Total equity 43,108.42 64,690.18
Net Debt to equity ratio 7:3 6:4

There are no changes made in the abjectives, policies or processes for managing capital during Lhe year ended 31.03.2022.

Note: Total Jong term debt sanctioned by bank is ¥ 93300.00/- Lakhs and ¥ 15000.00/- Lakhs from Adilya Birla Finance Limited , out of which ¥
92996 88/- Lakhs has been disbursed by Banks and ¥ 14500.00/- Lakhs is disbursed by Aditya Birla Finance Limited up lo 31st March 2022,
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Note 30 :Fair Value Measurements

(T in Lakha)

11 Financial instruments by Calegory -
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particular:
s FVTPL FVTOCI |Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 4,901.97 5,210.65
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalenls - 2,800,93 - - 4,404,28
{iii) Bank Balances other than (it} above - 6,272.79 - 5,600,68
(iv) Loans . > . = .
(v} Receivable from Railways under SCA - 1,903 47 - 2,070.70
(vi) Other Receivable - 2,267.61 - = 55.33
Total Financlal Assets - - 18,146.77 - - 17,341.64
“Flnancial Llablitles =
(1) Borrowings . 92,551.68 - - 99,165.87
(ii) Trade Payables -
Over Head Cosl Payables - 106.19 - - 163.99
Olher Trade Payables - - 343.36 - - 1,755.20
(iii) Capilal Creditors . 1,38,141.22 - - 1,28,755.74
(iv) Olher payables i3 197.48 = s 171.77 |
Total Financlal Liabilities - - 2,31,339.94 - - 2,30,012,57
(ii} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost:-
(€in Lakhs)
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars . ]
Carrying Value | Falr value | Carrying Value Fair value
Flnancial Assets - 1
Receivable from Railways under SCA 1,903.47 2,916.16 2,070.70 3,119.50
Total Financial Assets 1,903.47 2,916.16 2,070.70 3,119.50
Financlal Liabilltles
Over Head Cost Payables 106.18 108.30 163.99 169.16
Total Financial Llabilitles 106.19 108.30 163.99 169.16

i) The fare value of trade receivables, olher trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalenls and other shorl term trade receivables and payables are
considered to the same as their carrying values, due lo short term nature
ii) Long term variable rate borrowings are evaluated by company on parameters such as interest rales, specific country risk factors and olher risk faclors. Based on this
evalualion the fair value of such payables are nol malerially different from their carrying amount.

iii) The fair value of receivables from Railway under service concession arrangement and overhead cost payables were calculated based on cash flows discounted
using current lending rate, They are classified as level 3 fair values in fair value hierarchy due lo the inclusion of unobservable inpuls including counterparty credit risk

A

SIVA

PRASAD
KASTURI

Fair Vajue Hierarchy as on 31-03-2022 {¥In Lakhs)
Particulars Lovel 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
Financlal Assets
Financial assets al Amorlised Cosl 2,916.16 2,916.16
Receivable from Railways under SCA
- - 2,916.16 2,916.16
Falr Value Hierarchy as on 31-03-2022 (¥ in Lakhs)
|Par Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Liabllities
Financial Liabilities at Amorlised Cost 108.30 108.30
Over Head Cost Payable .
E - 108.30 108.30
Fair Value Hierarchy as on 31-03-2021 (2 in Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Total
Financial Assets
Financial assets at Amortised Cosl -
Receivable from Railways under SCA 3,119.50 3,119.50
- - 3,119.50 3,119.50
Fair Value Hierarchy as on 31-03-2021 (X in Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 3 Total
Financlal Liabllities
Financial Liabiliies at Amortised Cost
Over Head Cost Payable - - 169.16 169.16
- - 169.16 169.16
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{In) Fi lal Risk g

The Company’s principal financial liabililies comprise Bank Borrowings and other Borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities
is to finance the company’'s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operation. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is expose to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company financial risk activities are governed by appropriated policies and procedures and
that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with lha companies policies and risk objectives. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risk, which are summarised below:-

a) Market Risk
Market risk is Lhe risk Lhat the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises Interest
rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes loans and borrowing, deposits and other non derivative financial instruments

b} Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk lhat the fair value of futurs cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of change in markel inleresl rale, The company
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relales primarily to the company long term debt obtigations with floating interest rate. The company manages its
interest risk in accordance with the companies policies and risk objeclive.

c) Credit RIsk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty 1o a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's recsivables from customers. The company is exposed to credit risk from ils financial aclivilies including deposits with banks, financial
institutions and other financial instruments.

Fi | and Cash Deposit:

Credit risk from balances wilh banks and financial inslitutions is managed in accordance with the companies policy. Investment of surplus are made only with approved
counterparty on the basis of the financial quotes recsived from the counterparty

d) Liquidity risk
Ultimate responsibilily for liquidity risk management rest with the board of direclors the company manages maintaining adequate banking facilities and reserves
borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturities of financial liabilities

The table below analyse the company's major financial liabilities i.e. Borrowings into relevant maturity groupings based on their conlractual maturities

(T in Lakhs)
Contractual Maturltles of Financial Within Between Between Later than Total
Liabilities 1 Year 1to 2 Years 3 to 6 years & years
31st March 2022
Borrowings _7.360.40 17,199.50 21,499.37 46,492 41 92,661.68
31st March 2021
Borrowings 6.449 81 15,049.56 2042441 | 57,242.09 99,166.87
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Note : 31 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and the key sources of estimalion uncertainty at the end of the reporting period thal may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to lhe carrying amount of assels and liabilities with next financial year.

a} Useful Lives of Intanglbles

As described in nole 2, company has estimaled the useful live of inlangible assets (Intangible under service concession arrangement) is 30 years for amortisation of
intangible assets, As per service concession arrangement if NPV payback equal to equity investment @14% is reached earlier than 30 years, lhe concession
agreement would stand terminated and the project line would be repossessed by Railway,

The financial impact of the above assessmenl may impact lhe amortisation expenses in subsequent financial years

b) Falr Valuation Measurement and Valuation Process

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is measured using the valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these method are taken
from observable markets where possible, bul where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in eslablishing fair values. Judgments include considerations
of inpuls such as liquidily risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumplions aboul these faclors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See
Note 30 for further disclosures

c) Taxes

Deferred lax assets are recognized for unused lax losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent that il is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which losses can be utilized significant management judgment is required lo determine the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profit together with future tax planning strategies

Note :32 Application of Ind AS on Materlal items
The Prior Period Items and changes in accounting polices are applied retrospectively on account of materiality only in line with the provisions of Indian Accounling

Standards.

Note : 33 Construction Contracts
In terms of the disclosure required in Ind-AS 115 as notified in lhe companies (Accounting standard) rules 2015 as amended, the amount considered in lhe financial
statements up to the balance sheet date are as foliows:«

{3 in Lakhs)
During the year  During the year

Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
. March 2022 March 2021
Contracl revenue recognised * 2,899.80
Aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognized in - 2,899.80
Note : 34 Contractual Commitments
The amount of contractual commilments in relation to project assets recognised as intangible assets is as under

(% 1 Lakns)
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March

— 2022 2021

Capital commilment for project relaled assets is under review for March 2022 and March 2021

During the year no material foreseeable losses incurred on any Long term contracts.
Total

Note : 35 Leases Disclosures

(i) Company has adopted lhe Ind AS-116 as per the requirement of lhe applicable financial reporting framework from the 01.04,2019. Company is having Nil impact
due to adoption of the Ind AS-116 since, there is no leases transaction in the Company except the leased assets as per the concession agreement

(i) South Central Railway (lessor) has leased all the existing assets as per concession agreement and any land lo be newly acquired for the projecl to company
(Lessee) for the duration of Concession Agreement i.e., 30 years or on to attainment of lhe Net Present Value {NPV) payback equal to equity investmenl @14%
whichever is earlier

Company shall pay (o the lessor. an annual lease rentals @ ¥ 1/- per annum in respect of the new land acquired by South Central Railway and for original land leased
to the company as per the exlanl policy MOR as revised from time to time_ This lease rental shall be payable in advance in one single installment payable in first week
of January,

During the period ended March 2022, ¥ 1/- have been recognised as lease expense
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Note 36 : Related Party Disclosures

36.1 Related Parties

A- Related Parties held Equity of Company

As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

- - 0, i i
Name Refationship Number of ‘/:‘ h:'f;gg :; Number of | % holding in that
Shares held ol Shares held class of Shares
Shares
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited Parties to Joint Venture Agreement 31,10,00,000.00 49.76%| 31,10,00,000.00 49.76%
E”':i’t‘:;pa‘”am Port Company | parties to Joint Venture Agreement | 8,10,00,000.00 12.96%|  8.10,00,000.00 12.96%
Govt. of Andhra Pradesh Parties to Joint Venture Agreement 3,50,00,000.00 5.60%| 3,50,00,000.00 5.60%
National Mineral Development | 5 e 16 Jaint Venture Agreement | 4,00.00,000.00 6.40%|  4,00,00,000.00 6.40%
Corporation Limited
Bramhani Industries Limited Parties to Joint Venture Agreement 3,30,00,000.00 5.28%| 3,30,00,000.00 5.28%
Sagarmala Development Parties to Joint Venture Agreement | 12.50,00,000.00 20.00%| 12,50,00,000.00 20.00%
Company Limited
36.2 Key Managerial Personnel of the Entity
Name Position
Sushant Kumar Mishra (upto 21/09/2021) Chairman
Jaya Varma Sinha (from 21/09/2021) Chairman
Kasturi Siva Prasad (from 19/04/2021) Managing Director
Venkata Subrahmanyam Dronamraju (upto 01/09/2021) Director
Munna Kumar (from 15/11/2021) Director
Sajal Mitra Director
Shilpi Agarwal Director
Dilip Kumar Gupta Director
Vinay Kumar Prajapati Director
Mritunjay Pratap Singh Director
Alok Kumar Mehta (upto 23/11/2021) Director
Somnath Nandi (from 23/11/2021) Director
Nallamilli Pedaramakrishna Reddy (upto 22/06/2021) Director
Muralidharan Krishnamoorthy (from 22/06/2021) Director
Boyareddigari Kamalakara Reddy Director
Gudena Jagannadha Rao (upto 23/11/2021) Director
Avinash Chand Rai (from 23/11/2021) Director
Trilok Garg CS
Muni Prasad Tripurasetty (from 26/08/2021) CFO
36.3 Disclosure of Transaction with Related Parties:
(i) Joint Venture:
(T in Lakhs)

Transactions

Outstanding Amount Payable/
(Receivable)

Particul
anicylars Year ended 31  Year ended 31 Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2022 March 2021 March 2022 March 2021

RVNL Unsecured Unsecured

Expenditure towards project (1,030.05) 3,032.68 1,38,141.22 1,28,755.74

Interest Charged by RVNL 11,317.25 10,378.17 -

Revenue from Operations 33.63 -

Payment for project expenditure (900.00) (100.00) - =

Advance for project expenditure given - - - (50.00)

Advance for project expenditure adjusted 50.00 16.00 - -

Sub-contract work have been given to RVNL which has been made at the price prevalent in market.

The amount outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash.

receivable or payable.
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There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party

Digially signed by
SIVA PRASAD
KASTURI

Date: 2022.06.28
17:09:37 +05'30

060

TMUNI St
PRASA

Dute: 20220628
|6:39:58 +05'30"

h|




(ii) Compensation of Key Management Personnel:
The remuneration of directors and other key management personnel during the year was as follows:

B (T in Lakhs)
Particul Year ended Year ended
. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Short-term benefits 50.76 41.06
Contribution to Provident fund 1.25 1.18
52.01 42.24

Note 37 : The confirmations from South Central Railway for Apportioned Revenue, O&M expenses, balance and statement of account with the
company are yet to be received.

Note 38 : There are no reported Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act
2006” to whom the company owes any dues.

Note 39: Contingent Liability

a) Department has raised demand in respect of alleged offence of evasion of Service Tax amounting to ¥ 757.53 Lakhs and T 285.98 Lakhs for
financial year 2014-15 and 2015-16 respectively. Also department has raised demand of ¥ 294.95 Lakhs for the F.Y. 2016-17 and 2017-18 (upto
June'17), However Company has not accepted the liability and has submitted its reply to department. Since the Company had earlier received
favourable ruling from CESTAT, it is confident that no additional liability will devolve on it. Further for the period F.Y. 2011-12 to F.Y. 2013-14, KRCL
has received favourable order from CESTAT for demand of ¥ 1341.80 Lakhs. In case of similar companies on same matter department has moved to
Hon'ble Supreme court in this case.

During the F.Y. 2019-20 Income Tax Department has moved to Hon'ble High Court of Delhi in respect of Tax demand of ¥ 516.64 Lakhs for A.Y. 2011-
12, Company has already received favourable order from ITAT in this case. Therefore, liability for this case has not been recorded in the books of
Accounts. Arbitration proceedings are going with MoR (Respondent).

b) During the previous years, company has received certain bills under protest from contractor pertaining to phase 1 on which a future liability may
arise. Financial impact of the same is not ascertainable at present.

c) Contingent liability in respect of departmental charges not claimed by RVNL @ 5% of project cost is estimated at ¥ 11411.82 Lakhs.

Note 40 : Impairment of Assets

The company has assessed at the end of Financial year whether there is any indication (As per para 12 of Ind AS 36) that an asset may be impaired.
The management is of the view that no indication for impairment of assets exists at balance sheet date. The management has carried out a review on
impairment of all the assets of the Company including intangible assets in accordance with Ind AS-36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. On the basis of review,
the management is of the opinion that the economic performance of property, plant & equipment and intangibles and other assets, is not worse than
expected and therefore, no impairment of any assets has been made as on the Balance Sheet date.

Note 41: Approval of Financial Statement
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th June 2022.

Note 42 : CSR Expenditure

With the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility ) Rules, 2014 read with various clarifications
issued by MCA, the company has undertaken activities as per CSR policy.

) As at 31 March, | As at 31 March,
Particulars 2022 2021

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year - 123.74
(ily Amount of expenditure incurred on:-
(a) Construction / acquisition of any asset - -
(b) On purposes other than (a) above - 39.12

(c) Contribution to four funds as mentioned in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 - -
(d) Contribution towards PM CARES Fund B 84.62

(iii) Shortfall at the end of the year - -
(iv) Total of previous years shortfall - -
(v) Reasons for shortfall - -
(vi) Nature of CSR activities - :
(vi) Details of related party transactions - =
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Note 43 : Goods and Service Tax

The company is not charging GST on apportioned freight received from Ministry of Railways since MOR is apportioning Revenue net of Goods and Services
Tax to Company and GST on the same is deposited by Ministry of Railways. Company has also received favourable order from CESTAT under Service Tax
regime. Matter stands open in GST regime, however Ministry of Railways has seeked clarification from Finance Ministry for applicability of GST on transaction
Further GST on Operation Expenses allocated by South Central Railway is not paid or provided. Since, in view of the management there is no supply of service
involved.

Note 44: COVID-19 Impacts on the Financial Statements

Since March 2021, the consequences of the COVID-19 outspread have disrupted the construction/operation work of the Company however Management is
having a reasonable assurance that these uncertainties do not cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company currently does not expect material changes to the profitability of future business plans which could impact recoverability of assets such as
intangible assets. Risk assessment on the business plans is carried out on a regular basis and an impairment review will be performed if conditions suggest that

such assets may be impaired.

Note 45: Various Ratios as per the Schedule-lll of the Companies Act 2013.

As at As at
Ratio Numerator Denominator 31st March | 31st March | % Variance Reason for Variance
2022 2021
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.11 0.11 1.17% NA —|
Debt-Equity Ratio | Total Debt gzz;hmders 2.15 1.81 18.40% NA
Debt Service Earnings available . "
Coverage Ratio for Debt Service Debt Service 1.26 = GRS A
Net Profits after
Taxes — dverage .
Return on Equity Ratio Preference Shareholder's (0.24) (0.18) 33.11%|Due to Increase in loss from the last year
Dividend (if any) Equity
Inventory Turnover Cost of Goods sold
Ratio or Sales Average Inventory NA
Trade Receivables . Average Accounts o
Turnover Ratio Net Credit Sales Receivable 4.59. . 4,36 5.28% NA
Trade Payables Net Credit Average Trade NA
Turnover Ratio Purchases Payables
:::igapnm Turnover |\ ot Sales Working Capital 0.17) 0.17) 3.10% NA
Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Net Sales {0.50) {0.50) (0.93)% NA
Eetirom CEptE arning before Capital Employed 0.08 0.03 140.81% | Due to Increase in loss from the last year
Employed Interest and Taxes P
Net return on .
Return on Investment IPvestiant Total Investment 0.12 0.08 45.67%|Due to Increase in loss from the last year

Note 46: Other Disclosures
() The Company does not have any Benami property and further no proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami

property.

(iiy The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii} The Company does not have any pending charges or satisfaction to be registered with ROC.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

(v} The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(vi) The Company has no loans and advances which are either repayable on demand or are without specilying any terms or period of repayment.

(vii) The company has not been classified as wiliful defaulter by the Bank or financial institution.

(vili) The reallsable value of fnancial asscts ot the Company 1s not lower than value disclosed in financial statements and subject to confirmation.

Note 47: Previous year figures has been rearranged, reclassified and regrouped to make them confirmatory with current year reported figures,
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ARUN K. AGARWAL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
105, FIRST FLOOR, SOUTH EX. PLAZA-1
389, MASJID MOTH, SOUTH EXTN. PART-II.
NEW DELHI-110049 PH.: 011-40529067
Website: www.akaca.net, e-mail: arun1960@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Quudlified Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Krishnapatnam Railway
Company Limited (‘the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements").

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (' the Act') in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards {("Ind
AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022
and its Loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

3. Monthly revenue bills/apportionment sheet of revenue are received from South Central
Railway (“"SCR"). All these invoices are marked as "Provisional' and the outcome of
provisional invoices are not known fill the date of audit report. The monthly revenue
statements are not checked and certified by the concerned from the company. Thus,
the final accounts are drawn on the strength of provisional unverified revenue. Further, as
stated in Note 19(i)(d), all supporting evidences related to revenue booking are being
controlled and managed by the SCR. As intimated to us, the same are not available with
the company, hence, there is no basis to verify the same.

Further, as referred by the management of the company vide Note 19(i) (c). the revenue

is provisional and subject to pending decision of Arbitration w.r.t. revenue on account of
terminal cost from SCR for past periods of operation from beginning also. Thus, operating
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revenue could not be verified and financial impact, if any, cannot be ascertained fil
finality of the same.

4. Despite of contractual obligation in terms of the Construction Agreement with Rail Vikas
Nigam Limited (“RVNL"), the Company is neither paying nor providing towards
departmental charges @ 5% without obtaining any waiver or concession in the agreed
terms of agreement. The Company has estimated liability of ¥ 11411.82 lacs being 5% of
total project cost which been considered as contingent liability (Refer Note-39¢) in the
financial statements. In view of no accounting treatment of said departmental charges,
Other Intangible Assets and Other Financial Liabilities are understated to that extent.
Further, had it been capitalized, the corresponding impact on Loss of the respective year
due to amortisation cost of intangible assets, not considered.

5. The Company is neither paying nor providing Goods and Service Tax ("GST") on
Operation & Maintenance Cost (“*O&M") under reverse charge mechanism on bills raised
by SCR on the rationale that there is no service involved in these transactions (Refer Note
43). The current year's impact of GST @ 18% of O&M Charges comes to ¥ 398.40 lacs
(excluding interest, if any). However, in view of uncertain amount of total GST, impact
since inception cannot be determined.

6. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ('SAs') specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('the ICAl') together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matters
7. We draw attention to:

(i} Note 4.5 to the accompanying financial statements, according to which, D&G
charges being capitalised and amortised is subject to change based on outcome of
actual final completion cost.

(i} Note 4.7 to the accompanying financial statements in relation to incremental project
cost, ongoing expenditure bills after commencement of operations and consequent
impact on capitalization of Intangible Assefs.

(i) Note no 19 (i) (b) &(c) to the accompanying financial statements which describes
impact of anticipaled earnings on account of (a) length ot about 14.45 KM section
from Krishnapatnam Railway Station and (b) similar payment of terminal costs for
past periods also. These issues are now pending under Arbitration and the revenue
reported is subject to the outcome of Arbitration.

(iv)] Note 21(i) to the accompanying financial statements, which describes regarding
recognition of O&M Expenses on the basis of provisional bills intimated by SCR.




(v) Note 34 to the accompanying financial statements which describes about pending
review of capital commitment for project related assets.

(Vi) Note 43 to the accompanying financial statements, which describes non-charging of
GST on its revenue on the rationale that it is not supply but merely apportionment of
earnings.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Key Audit Matters

8. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

9. The company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation
of other information. The other information comprises the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Director's Report including annexures to Director's Report, Business Responsibility
Report, Corporate Governance, Shareholder's information included in the annual report
of the company, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. On
reading the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
take necessary actions as per applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

10. The Company's management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a tfrue and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
dccordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensurin
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accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

.In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

.The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial

reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

13.

14,

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an qudit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. :

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and dppropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud mayy involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such confrols.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether o material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
company fo cease to continue as a going concern.
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any
significant deficiencies in intemnal control that we identify during our audit.

.We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

18

19

20

. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, we have considered the direction and sub-

directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India. We give our report in the
attached "Annexure B".

. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) we have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the
accompanying financial statements;

(o) except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account; '

(d) except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act;

{e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;




(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section:

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in "Annexure C". Our report expresses an qualified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting;

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is
in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. In view of uncertainty of the outcome of pending litigations, the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position could not be ascertained:

ii. As informed to us, the Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 3]
March 2022. However capital commitment for project related assets is under review
and impact of the same could not be ascertained.

iii. As informed to us, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company.

iv. {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall:

e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries")
* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shaill:

e directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries")
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* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:
and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
Us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11 (e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.
For Arun K Agarwal & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 00391

[ "x//y//
Arun Kuiviar Ag % &
(Partne Lerad Ao

M. No. 082899
UDIN: 22082899 ALUXQB5496

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28.06.2022
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‘ANNEXURE A' fo Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in para 18 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regularity Requirements’ section of
our report of even date to the members of Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view
on the financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information
and explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in
the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

i.

(a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment (“PPE"). There is
no right-of-use assets in the company.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The PPE have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification of the PPE is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and

the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. For
leasehold land, the title deeds are held in the name of SCR and leasehold rights are in
the name of the Company as per Lease Deed appended in Concession Agreement.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and
intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause
3(ii){a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 crore,
in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3{ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

During the year, the company has not made any investments in, provided any
guardntee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly paragraphs 3 (i) (a), {b). (c). (d), (e) and (f) of the Order are not
applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees
and securities provided, as applicable.
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Vi,

vil.,

viii.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1} of section 148 of the Act for the business activities carried out by
the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable.

o) Company is generally regular in depositing, with the appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Income tax,
Service tax, cess and other statutory dues. Further, no undisputed amounts remain
payable in respect of such statutory liabilities as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on 31 March 2022 on account of disputes are given below: :

Nature of | Amount |Period to which it| Forum at which case is
the dues |((Zin lacs) pertains pending

757.53 FY 2014-15
285.98 FY 2015-16

Name of the Statute

Principal Commissioner
of Central Goods &

Finance Act, 1994 | Service Tax FY 2016-17 & FY ) :
29495 | 2017-18 (Upto gg[}‘;‘ﬁe Tax,  Delhi-
June 2017)
|]n9c6c]>me-fox Al lincome-tax | 51664 | AY2011-12 | High Court, Delhi B

There were no fransactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender dues to any bank or bonds/debenture holders
as at the Balance Sheet date.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained:

(d) Based on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year.

(e) Based on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its joint ventures/subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its joint ventures/subsidiaries. '

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.
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Xi.

Xii.

Xii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

xvil,

Xviii.

XiX.

(o) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) No material fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

{c) As informed, no whistle blower complaints have been received by the Company
during the year.

The company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, fransactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and requisite details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Ind AS.

(@) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(o) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures.

The Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

{a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment compdany within the Group (as defined in
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016). Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses of T 1424.09 lacs and Z 7055.09 lacs during the
financial year covered by our audit and immediately preceding financial year
respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, it has come to
our notice that in normal course of business, the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing as on 31 March 2022 (as mentioned in Note-17) as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,

072



XX.

XXi.

our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance in relation to the said reporting.

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} on
ofher than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to
the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135
of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx}(a) of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

(o) There are no unspent amounts under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act,
pursuant to any ongoing project requiring a transfer to a Special account in compliance
with the provision of sub-section (¢) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Arun K Agarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 0039

(Partr
M. No. 082899

i
* 4
&

r)

UDIN: 22082899ALUXQB5496

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28.06.2022
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‘ANNEXURE B’ to Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in para 19 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regularity Requirements' section of
our report of even date to the members of Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited)

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

We have conducted the audit of the accounts of Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the Directions issued by the C&AG of
India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify that we have complied
with all the directions issued to us.

For Arun K Agarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 0039217N
Arun Ku

A
G{gq\/~/{ I
(Partner

M. No, 082899
UDIN: 22082899ALUXQB5496

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28.06.2022

Enclosed: Direction u/s 143(5) are attached



Audit Report of Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited for the year 2021 -2022 pursuant to

1.

Afun

4 %
ar Agarw o)
(Por’rne } ﬂxﬂw“

M. No. 082899
UDIN: 22082899 ALUXQB5496

)

Directions under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions
through IT system? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications, if
any, may be stated.

The company has system in place to process the accounting transactions through T
System except Fixed Assets Register (FAR). FAR is maintained in excel sheets and
depreciation/amortization on PPE and Intangible Assets are calculated and
subsequently posted in accounting software. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no accounting transactions have been processed outside the IT
System. Therefore, no impact on the integrity of the accounts and financial implication

thereof.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company's
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated. Whether such
cases are properly accounted for? (In case, lender is a Government Company, then this
direction is also applicable for statutory auditor of the lender company).

Based on Audit Procedure performed by us and as per the information and explanation
given to us, there has been no restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write
off of debts/ loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company.

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable for specific schemes from
Central/State Government or its agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as per its
term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Based on Audit Procedure performed by us and as per the information and explanation
given to us by the management, there were no such funds received/receivable for
specific schemes from Central/State Government or its agencies.

For Arun K Agarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 00

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28.06.2022
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‘ANNEXURE C’ to Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in para 20(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regularity Requirements' section
of our report of even date to the members of Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Krishnapatnam
Railway Company Limited (“the company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date. '

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The company's management and Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence
to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAlI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's infernal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weaknesses have been identified as at 31 March 2022:

a) All supporting evidences related to revenue booking and O&M charges are being
controlled & managed by SCR only. Working Sheets and collateral records neither
supplied by the SCR nor maintained by the company. As a result, there is no basis to
verify the same.

b) As informed to us, there is no methodology on the part of management to ensure the up
fo date accounting of expenditure on construction projects, including bills which are
dlready incurred but not billed to the company and also which are awaited dispatch by
the contractors for the construction.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the company's annual financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weaknesses described above
on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has developed
some internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as of 31 March 2022, however, there is an
urgent need for updating and development of comprehensive Internal Financial Control
Manual based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria consider
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essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAl and devising of process for
periodic verification of various modules of the referred manual.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining
the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the financial statements
of the Company, and these material weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

For Arun K Agarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 003917

,"/_‘\,/"H“’fd)//_
Arumﬁmar Agarwal -
(Partn =
M. No. 082899
UDIN: 22082899 ALUXQB5496

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28.06.2022
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

h_egd. office: Amsri Faust Com;;Iex, Boor No 9-1-164/A-166, 5" Floor, Sarojini Devi Road,
Secunderabad- 500003, Telangana, CIN NO. U45200TG2006PLC051378

Sl

No.

Auditor’s Comments for Financial Year 2021-22

Management Reply

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

Monthly revenue bills/apportionment sheet of
revenue are received from South Central Railway
(“SCR”). All these invoices are marked as
"Provisional" and the outcome of provisional
invoices are not known till the date of audit report.
The monthly revenue statements are not checked
and certified by the concerned from the company.
Thus, the final accounts are drawn on the strength
of provisional unverified revenue. Further, as
stated in Note 19(i)(d), all supporting evidences
related to revenue booking are being controlled
and managed by the SCR. As intimated to us, the
same are not available with the company, hence,
there is no basis to verify the same.

Further, as referred by the management of the
company vide Note 19(i) (c), the revenue is
provisional and subject to pending decision of
Arbitration w.r.t. revenue on account of terminal
cost from SCR for past periods of operation from
beginning also. Thus, operating revenue could not
be verified and financial impact, if any, cannot be
ascertained till finality of the same.

It is the practice of Railway Administration to
furnish such statements, viz., Revenue or
0&M or any other amount paid to be marked
as ‘Provisional’.

KRCL do not have any control over the
practices followed by Railway Administration
(SCR).

Revenue Statements are always checked by
KRCL officers at Secunderabad. Copies of all
revenue statements certified by CFO/KRCL
and Expert (O&C)KRCL have been
furnished to Audit team. A few examples of
daily loading details as well as Monthly
loading provided by SCR were shown to the
Audit team and matched, which were found

I correct.

|

:Note 19 (i) (¢) is a disclosure of facts. The
| matter is under arbitration and subjudice.

Despite of contractual obligation in terms of the
Construction Agreement with Rail Vikas Nigam
Limited (“RVNL”), the Company is neither
paying nor providing towards departmental
charges @ 5% without obtaining any waiver or
concession in the agreed terms of agreement. The
Company has estimated liability of ¥ 11411.82
lacs being 5% of total project cost which been
considered as contingent liability (Refer Note-39¢)
in the financial statements. In view of no
accounting treatment of said departmental
charges, Other Intangible Asscts and Other
Financial Liabilities are understated to that extent.
Further, had it been capitalized, the corresponding
impact on Loss of the respective year due to
amortisation cost of intangible assets, not
considered.

In terms of Construction Agreement with Rail
Vikas Nigam Limited, Departmental Charges
are payable to RVNL on the basis of final
cost of work. Since RVNL has not raised any
invoice/claim in this regard, therefore this
amount has been treated as “Contingent
Liability” in the Books of Accounts.

The Company has represented to RVNL for
waiving off the Departmental Charges.
Hence, it would be logical to retain the
amount of Departmental Charges in
Contingent Liability.

SCR is performing operations on KRCL

The Company is neither paying nor providing

SIVA PRASAD o sanean insrum
KASTURI Date: 2022.07.01

21:57:00 +05'30"

Corporate office: Room No. 272, 1¢ Floor, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi-110066
Ph. No. 011-26738404, Fax. No. 011-26182957
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Goods and Service Tax (“GST”) on Operation &
Maintenance Cost (*O&M?”) under reverse charge
mechanism on bills raised by SCR on the rationale
that there is no service involved in these
transactions (Refer Note 43). The current year’s
impact of GST @ 18% of O&M Charges comes to
I 39840 lacs (excluding interest, if any).
However, in view of uncertain amount of total

Railway line which is a sovereign function of
Indian Railways and SCR is charging cost of
operations from KRCL in monthly O&M
bills.

Maintenance of the Railway line is being
done by the Company itself through
contractors and the Company is paying GST
on bills of maintenance contractors.

Hence, the amount of O&M Cost charged by
SCR from KRCL is allocation of cost of
operations between SCR and KRCL. As such
there is no service provided by SCR to
KRCL. Due to operations, whatever revenue
is generated, GST is paid to Government by
SCR.

Since there is no service involved, therefore
no GST is payable on O&M bills of SCR.

GST, impact since inception cannot be
determined.

SIVA Dty

PRASAD KASTURJ

KASTURI  arsaeorns
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SL | Auditor’s Comments for Financial Year 2020-21 Management Reply
| No._
Emphasis of Matters -

1 | Note 4.5 to the accompanying financial statements, | At present RVNL is claiming D&G Charges
according to which, D&G charges being capitalised | in accordance with provisions of Construction
and amortised is subject to change based on | Agreement.
outcome of actual final completion cost. On Completion of work, final accrual of

D&G Charge will be calculated and actual
impact will be taken in Financial Statements.

2 | Note 4.7 to the accompanying financial statements | Statement of fact, hence, no comment
in relation to incremental project cost, ongoing | required.
expenditure bills after commencement of operations
and consequent impact on capitalization of

Intangible Assets.

3 [Note no 19 (i) (b) &{(c) to the accompanying | Statement of fact, hence, no comment
financial statements which describes impact of | required.
anticipated earnings on account of (a) length of
about 14.45 KM section from Krishnapatnam
Railway Station and (b) similar payment of
terminal costs for past periods also. These issues
are now pending under Arbitration and the revenue
reported is subject to the outcome of Arbitration.

4 |Note 21 (i) to the accompanying financial | It is the practice of Railway Administration to
statements, which describes regarding recognition | furnish such statements, viz., Revenue or
of O&M Expenses on the basis of provisional bills | O&M or any other amount paid to be marked
intimated by SCR. as ‘Provisional’.

KRCL do not have any control over the
practices followed by Railway
Administration.

5 | Note 34 to the accompanying financial statements | Statement of fact, hence, no comment
which describes about pending review of capital | required.
commitment for project related assets.

6 | Note 43 to the accompanying financial statements, | Revenue is collected by Indian Railway (IR).

which describes non-charging of GST on its
revenue on the rationale that it is not supply but
merely apportionment of earnings.

IR is paying the necessary GST to the
Government of India. Hence, further GST is

Digitally signed by
SIVA PRASAD
KASTURI

Date: 2022.07 01
21:57:48 +05'30'

SIVA
PRASAD
KASTURI
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not required to be paid by KRCL.
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SL

No.

Auditor’s Comments for Financial Year 2020-21

Management Reply

Internal Financial Control

All supporting evidences related to revenue
booking and O&M charges are being controlled &
managed by SCR only. Working Sheets and
collateral records neither supplied by the SCR nor
maintained by the company. As a result, there is no
basis to verify the same.

Every month reconciliation is being carried
out with the Traffic Revenue Officer of SCR.
RR wise reconciliation is done every month
by KRCL Officers in order to arrive at correct
revenue apportionment for the company.
Also, systematic records are maintained.
Revenue Statements and O&M Bills are
always checked by KRCL officers at
Secunderabad. Copies of all revenue
statements and O&M Bills certified by
CFO/KRCL and Expert (O&C)/KRCL have
been furnished to Audit team. A few
examples of daily loading details as well as
Monthly loading provided by SCR were
shown to the Auditors and matched, which
were found correct.

As informed to us, there is no methodology on the
part of management to ensure the up to date
accounting of expenditure on construction projects,
including bills which are already incurred but not
billed to the company and also which are awaited
dispatch by the contractors for the construction.

RVNL submits monthly/bimonthly bills of
the contractors for ongoing construction of

the project. Since, RVNL is an EPC
Contractor, KRCL does not have any
indication on  the forthcoming/future

construction bills.

SVA oo
PRASAD  wstn T
KASTURI 21:58:06 +05'30"
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2022.

The preparation of financial statements of Krishnapatnam Railway Company
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 28 June
2022.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Krishnapatnam Railway Company
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working
papers of the Statutory Auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor
and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant
matter under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in
my view is necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and
the related Audit Report:

A. Comments on Disclosure
Note — 19 (i)
A reference is invited to Note-19(i) wherein it has been stated that the ‘Company is
anticipating earnings on length of about 14.45 Km section (Krishnapatnam Railway
Station to Buffer end of Port Siding) and Terminal Cost from South Central Railway.

This issue is under Arbitration’.



The Company had not disclosed that it has filed total claims of X 3,227.74 crore
against the Ministry of Railways (MoR) and MoR has filed counter claims of X
5,556.53 crore.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 21.09.2022 Principal Director of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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